
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 

Regular Board Meeting 

3945 Rio Road, Carmel, CA 93923 

October 26, 2023 
Thursday 

9:00AM 

1



  
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT   

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES  
  Thursday, 9:00 a.m., September 28, 2023 

3945 Rio Road 
Carmel, California 93950 

Via Teleconference Webinar & In Person with Proof of Vaccination 
 

CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL - The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m.  
 *Signifies Virtual Attendance  

 
Present: President Ken White, Pro Tem Bob Siegfried, and *Directors Greg D’Ambrosio, and Mike Rachel, 

Director Urquhart  
 
Absent:   

A quorum was present. 
 
Others:     Barbara Buikema, General Manger Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD or District) 

Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer, CAWD 
Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer, CAWD* 
Ed Waggoner, Plant Superintendent, CAWD* 
Kevin Young, Plant Operations Supervisor, CAWD* 
Chris Foley Maintenance Superintendent, CAWD 
Robert Bowman, Acting Collections Superintendent * 
Domine Barringer, Board Secretary, CAWD 
Stephanie Atigh, Wellington Law Offices, CAWD Legal Counsel 
Director Verbanec, Director, Pebble Beach Community Services District (PBCSD) * 
Mike Niccum, General Manager, PBCSD* 
Nick Becker, Deputy General Manager, District Engineer, PBCSD* 
 
In Person Public Attendees:  
None 
 
*Virtual Public Attendees:  
*Karen Helton| Carmel Meadows Representative-arrived after the close of public comment
      
*Steve Thomas |TBC Communications & media *admin  
 

1. Appearances/Public Comments: Public Comments (Matters Not on Agenda Any 
Subject ): 
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2



 
Appearances/Public Comments on Agendized Items: (Matters On Agenda Any 
Subject ):  
    The Board received questions from Karen Helton, Carmel 
Meadows representative, through the Question and Answer (Q&A) Zoom 
platform, which were read aloud by the Board Clerk at 10:45 a.m. to the Board 
of Directors after the close of public comment and after the Board approved item 
#19 regarding the TBC Communications contract for Carmel Meadows. Ms. 
Helton stated the questions were stated after the fact in order to provide a 
thoughtful and detailed request.  
 
 

2. Agenda Changes: Any requests to move an item forward on the agenda will be considered 
at this time. 
 

• Insertion of Karen Helton’s email regarding Carmel Meadows Project-posted to the 
website and hard copies provided to all Board members 

• United Public Employees of California number is 792 
• Insertion of the 9-27-23 Salary & Benefits meeting minutes 
• Correction of a typo on Item #21 -Correct Resolution number is 2023-57 

 
3. CLOSED SESSION: As permitted by Government Code Section 54957 et seq., the Board of 

Directors may adjourn to a Closed Session to consider specific matters dealing with litigation, 
certain personnel matters, real property negotiations, or to confer with the District’s Meyers-
Milias-Brown representative. 
 

A. Conference with Labor Negotiators: 

The Board will meet in closed session pursuant to Government Code Section 

54957.6: 

• Agency Designated Representatives:  Rick Bolanos & Barbara Buikema,  
 Employee Organization:  United Public Employees of  California, Local 792 

 

 

 
The Board went into closed session at 9:02 a.m. and discussed agenda item #3 regarding labor 
negotiations. The closed session ended at 10:09 a.m. Legal Counsel reported that during the closed 
session the Board took up the matter at hand with regard to Labor Negotiations, and no 
reportable action was taken.  The Board reconvened into open session at 10:12 a.m. and all in 
person attendees were invited back into the open session and all virtual attendees had access to 
the audio and visual platform for participation in the meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

3



CONSENT CALENDAR: APPROVAL OF MINUTES, FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MONTHLY REPORTS-ALL REPORTS RELATE  
TO CURRENT YEAR 
 

Board Action 
A Motion To Receive And Approve The Consent Agenda Was Made By Director Urquhart 
And Seconded By Director Siegfried. After A Roll Call Vote, The Board Unanimously 
Received And Approved The Following Consent Calendar/Agenda Items. 

 
4. Approve August 31, 2023, Regular Board Meeting Minutes &       

September 1, 2023 Bridge To Everywhere Minutes 
September 19,2023 Bridge To Everywhere Minutes 

 September 27,2023 Salary & Benefits Minutes (provided at the meeting) 
5. Receive and Accept Bank Statement Review by Clifton Larson Allen (CLA)-August 2023     
6. Receive and Accept Schedule of Cash Receipts & Disbursements-August,2023    
7. Approve Register of Disbursements Carmel Area Wastewater District –August,2023 
8. Approve Register of Disbursements – CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project –August,2023 
9. Receive and Accept Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules –August,2023 

10. Receive and Accept Collection System Superintendent’s Report – 2023 August, July & June 
2023  

11. Receive and Accept Safety and Regulatory Compliance Report –August,2023 
12. Receive and Accept Treatment Facility Operations Report – 2023 August, July & June 2023 
13. Receive and Accept Laboratory/Environmental Compliance Report –August 
14. Receive and Accept Capital Projects Report/Implementation Plan 
15. Receive and Accept Project Summaries – Capital & Non-Capital 
16. Receive and Accept Plant Operations Report – August 2023 
17. Receive and Accept Maintenance Projects Report –August 2023 
18. Receive and Accept District Engineer’s Report-August 2023 

 

ACTION ITEMS BEFORE THE BOARD 

Action Items consist of business which requires a vote by the Board. These items are acted upon 
in the following sequence: (1) Staff Report (2) Board Questions to Staff (3) Public Comments, and 
(4) Board Discussion and Action. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4



RESOLUTIONS 
 

19. Resolution No. 2023-55: Authorizing The General Manager To Execute A Contract      
For A Professional Service Agreement With TBC Communications In An Amount Not  
To Exceed $20,000 For Public And Project Related Communications Services For The  
District With The Carmel Meadows Pipeline Project (#19-03)- Report by General  
Manager, Barbara Buikema  

Board Action 
A Motion To Approve The Resolution Was Made By Director Urquhart And Seconded By 
Director Rachel. Following A Roll Call Vote, The Board Unanimously Passed Resolution 
2023-55 Authorizing The General Manager To Execute A Contract For A Professional 
Services Agreement With TBC Communications In An Amount Not To Exceed $20,000 For 
Public And Project Related Communications Services For The District With The Carmel 
Meadows Pipeline Project (#19-03).  
 
Ms. Helton stated that she could not hear the audio during the closed session. The Board Clerk 
answered her concerns in the chat function and via the live format. The Board clerk stated that 
the Board was in closed session and that is why she could not hear the audio, and it was  confirmed 
that Ms. Helton could see the place card holder stating the Closed Session was in progress. She 
stated that the chat function was disabled and was communicating via the Question & Answer 
section on the Zoom platform. The Board Clerk corrected the disabled chat function and Ms. Helton 
confirmed that she was able to use it.  
 
After the Board reconvened into open session it was confirmed that Ms. Helton could hear the 
audio and her questions were received via the Question & Answer section on the Zoom platform.  
 

 
President White, responded after the questions were read aloud and requested 
the following from staff: 

 
That a staff member reach out to Ms. Helton to resolve these questions. The General Manager 
addressed some of the questions live and will reach out to Ms. Helton directly.  

 
 There was a consensus from the board members. 

 
 

20. Resolution No. 2023-56: Authorizing The New Engineering Technical Services       
Manager And The Revised Principal Engineer’s Job Description- Report by General  
Manager, Barbara Buikema 

Board Action 
A Motion To Approve The Resolution Was Made By Director D’Ambrosio And Seconded By 
Director Rachel. Following A Roll Call Vote, The Board Unanimously Passed Resolution 
2023-56: Authorizing The New Engineering Technical Services Manager And The Revised 
Principal Engineer’s Job Description. 

5



 
21. Resolution No. 2023-57: Resolution Clarifying Resolution 2023-26 For Denise Duffy & 

Associates Contract Amendment #2 for the Corona Road Project Such That All Funds Expended 
by the District Will Be Reimbursed Via Bond Proceeds For This Project- Report by General 
Manager, Barbara Buikema 

Board Action 
A Motion To Approve The Resolution Was Made By Director Urquhart And Seconded By 
Director Siegfried. Following A Roll Call Vote, Resolution Clarifying Resolution 2023-26 For 
Denise Duffy & Associates Contract Amendment #2 for the Corona Road Project Such That 
All Funds Expended by the District Will Be Reimbursed Via Bond Proceeds For This Project. 

 
COMMUNICATIONS 

22. General Manager Report – oral report        *         
 
OTHER ITEMS BEFORE THE BOARD: None 

 
INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

 
23. September Construction Updates of Project #18-01 Electrical/Mechanical Rehab           

and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement – Report by Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor 
 
 
 

24. Announcements on Subjects of Interest to the Board Made by Members of 
the Board or Staff         
Oral reports or announcements from Board President, Directors or staff concerning their 
activities and/or meetings or conferences attended. 

 
PBCSD Board Public Meeting Notice & Agenda – The next PBCSD meeting is scheduled for: 
Friday, September 29, 2023, at 9:30 a.m. – Director D’Ambrosio will attend for Director Rachel  
Friday, October 27, 2023, at 9:30 a.m. – Director Urquhart is scheduled to attend.  

 
 Special Districts Association of Monterey County – The next SDA meeting is scheduled for:  

     Tuesday, October 17 , 2023, at 6:00 p.m. –Director Siegfried is scheduled to attend.  
     Tuesday, January TBD , 2024, at 6:00 p.m. –Director Urquhart is scheduled to attend.  
 

  
 
Reclamation Management Committee (RMC) Meeting – The next RMC meeting is scheduled for:  
Tuesday, November 7, 2023, at 9:30 a.m. President White and Director Rachel are scheduled to 
attend. 

 
 

 

6



25. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the President adjourned the meeting at 
11:07 a.m. The next Regular Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., Thursday, October 26, 2023, or an 
alternate acceptable date, via teleconference webinar.  

 
As Reported To: 
 
____________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary to the Board 

APPROVED: 
 
________________________________________________ 
Ken White, President of the Board 

 
 

7



 

           CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT  
BRIDGE TO EVERYWHERE 

STANDING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
September 29, 2023, Friday, 1:30 p.m. 

Via teleconference and in-person 
 

CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL:  
The meeting was called to order at 1:30 p.m. 
 
Present:  President Ken White 

Greg D’Ambrosio, Director  
 
*Signifies Virtual Attendance 

Other Attendees:  
Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
Patrick Treanor, Principal Plant Engineer 
Dave Potter, Mayor of Carmel-by-the-Sea 
Laura Bowling, Friends of Mission Trail 

  Doug Schmidt, Friends of Mission Trail 
  Paul Bartow- Citizen Representative* 
 
Absent:   Representative Sam Farr, Retired Congressman 
 
Appearances/Public Comments:  
 
Agenda Changes:  None 
 
AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

A. Carmel Community Days on 09-30-23:  cancelled due to rain forecast 
B. Status of easement review:  BBK is working on.  Barbara will report out as soon as they 

respond 
C. Grant application update:  Patrick will send out grant application 
D. Mission Ranch update:  On hold until easement review is complete 
E. Lance Monosoff update:  Barbara has emailed Mr. Monosoff and will set up a meeting 
F. Other contacts? Or ideas? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8



 
ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business to come before the Committee, the meeting concluded 
at 2:30 p.m. The next Regular Board Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., Thursday, October 26, 2023, or an 
alternate acceptable date, in-person and via teleconference webinar. The teleconference webinar is hosted 
through Zoom, and you may receive access by visiting our website homepage, www.cawd.org, calling the 
District office at 831-624-1248 or via email at downstream@cawd.org. 

As Reported To: 
__________________________________________ 
Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

APPROVED: 
_____________________________________________ 
Ken White, President  

9

mailto:downstream@cawd.org


10



11



Capital Compensated Defend or COUNTY Chase Chase
Capital Improvement General O & M Accruals Managed  Retreat Total Fund Bank O & M Bank PR L.A.I.F.
Fund Reserve Fund Reserve Reserve Balance Balance Balance Balance

BALANCE BEGINNING OF MONTH $15,171,814 $15,672,052 $7,656,646 $283,250 $6,123,438 $44,907,199 $670,161 $5,785 $1,228,581

Receipts:
   User Fees 18,135 33,240
   Property Taxes 14,088
   PBCSD Treatment Fees 115,000
   Reclamation O & M reimbursement 65,026
   Reclamation capital billing
   Permits 8,600
   PBCSD capital billing 1,165,585
   Other misc. revenue 18,069
   Interest income
   Connection Fees
   CCLEAN receipts
   Brine disposal fees 16,669
   Carmel Reserve LLC-Sept. Ranch Project
   SJSU grant receipts-Applied Marine Sciences 35,768
   Void checks-replace lost checks 480
        Total Receipts 0 14,088 18,135 0 0 32,223 1,458,437 0 0

Fund Transfers:
   Transfers to Chase Bank O&M
   Transfers to Chase Bank PR (250,000) 250,000
   Transfer to Defend or Managed Retreat Fund
   Intra-fund transfers for capital expenditures (495,753) 495,753
   Rebalance Capital and O&M Reserves
        Total Transfers (495,753) 0 495,753 0 0 0 (250,000) 250,000 0

Disbursements:
   Operations and capital 923,147
   Payroll & payroll taxes 249,019
   Employee Dental reimbursements 1,209
   CALPERS EFT 40,142
   CAWD SAM pension EFT 0
   Union dues EFT 777
   Home Depot EFT 522
   US Bank EFT 17,263
   Deferred comp contributions EFT 14,358 0
   PEHP contributions EFT 3,353 0
   Bank/ADP fees 0 915
   Highlands Bond Debt Service Payment 205,107 0
   GASB 68 report fee 0
   Alliant equipment floater premium EFT 0
   HCM Unlocked EFT 2,250
         Total Disbursements 0 0 205,107 0 0 205,107 1,003,021 249,934 0

BALANCE END OF MONTH 14,676,061 15,686,140 7,965,427 283,250 6,123,438 44,734,315 875,578 5,851 1,228,581

Carmel Area Wastewater District
Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - SEPTEMBER 2023

12



Capital Reserve + O&M + O&M Reserve + Compensated Absences Reserve = Total Fund held in County

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

30,000,000

35,000,000

40,000,000

45,000,000

50,000,000

Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23

Total Fund Balances 23-24Capital Reserves

O&M

Comp Absences

Retreat Reserve

Total

13



0

2,000,000

4,000,000

6,000,000

8,000,000

10,000,000

12,000,000

14,000,000

16,000,000

Capital Capital Reserve O&M Compensated Absences Managed Retreat Reserve

14,676,061 

15,686,140 

7,965,427 

283,250 

6,123,438 

11,686,752 

15,780,883 

6,564,990 

274,162 

5,000,000 

2023-24
2022-23

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



 

STAFF REPORT   
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Daryl Lauer, Collection Superintendent 
 
DATE:            October 26, 2023  
         
SUBJECT: Monthly Report – September 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required.  
 
       
Permits Issued 
 
Sewer Lateral Permits issued in September                         …..................                             20 
 
Total Fees     ....................................................................................................... $3,920.00 
 
 
Maintenance  
Attached is a map of the areas cleaned and Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) inspected in 
the past three months. There were 35,993 feet of sewer lines cleaned, there were no CCTV 
inspections during the month of September.   
 
 
Recent Line Cleaning Summary 

Cleaning period Footage 
Cleaned 

Percentage Cleaned Size of Pipe Cleaned 

September 35,993 ft. 9.75% 6 – 10 inches 
August 65,736 ft. 15.99% 6 - 27 inches 

July 28,703 ft. 6.98% 6 – 12 inches 
 

 

 

43



 
 
 
Annual Line Cleaning Graph 

 
 
 
 

Line Cleaning Table 

Total Target Amount 
(Linear Feet) 

Cumulative Complete 
(Linear Feet) 

Remaining (Linear Feet) 

615,000 429,893 185,107 
 
 
 
 
 
 

44



 
 
 
CCTV Progress Graph (River Watch Settlement Agreement Target) 
 

 
 
CCTV Table 

Total Required 
amount (Linear Feet) 

Cumulative Complete 
(Linear Feet) 

Remaining (Linear Feet) 

408,672 408,672 0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

45



 
 
 
Manhole Inspection Progress Graph (Riverwatch Settlement Agreement Target) 
 

 
 
Manhole Inspection Table 

Total Required Amount 
(Manholes) 

Actual Complete 
(Manholes) 

Remaining                  
(Manholes) 

1428 1428 0 
 
Riverwatch Update 

• Staff has completed the manhole inspection part of the settlement. The Principal 
Engineer will use this data to schedule rehabilitation or replacement of damaged or 
deteriorated manholes. 

• Staff has completed the CCTV inspections and the pumps station evaluations are 
being reviewed by the Principal Engineer.   A review of this information will be 
included in the final Collection System Asset Management Plan.  

 
Construction Activities 

• Lorca Lane emergency sewer main replacement (project 22-07) began in late 
September. This project is scheduled to be completed by the end of October.  

46



 
Staff Development 
 

• Staff completed several in-person tailgate training courses.  
• Staff attended safety weeks in September. All staff participated in annual 

training and drills in confined space, confined space rescue, Hazwoper 
(Hazardous Waste Operations and Emergency Response), Automated External 
Defibrillator, Cardiopulmonary resuscitation first aid and several internal safety 
policies.  

 
General comments 

• N/A 
 
Service calls responded to by crew 
 

Date Time Callout Resolution 
9/5/2023 11:58 AM Lateral Overflow Called by homeowner for a lateral overflow. 

Staff cleaned the District's main line and 
found no issues. Staff informed the owner to 
call a plumber of their choice. See callout 
map. 

9/15/2023 11:26 AM Possible Sewage Leak Called by the homeowner for a leaking 
water valve and they were not sure if it was 
sewage or water. Staff arrived on scene to 
find a leaking water valve in the street. Staff 
contacted the local water company 
regarding the leak. See call out map. 

47



 
Date Time Callout Resolution 
9/15/2023 3:35 PM Lateral Overflow Called by homeowner for a lateral overflow. 

Staff cleaned the District's main line and 
found no issues. Staff informed the owner to 
call a plumber of their choice. See callout 
map. 

9/21/2023 11:47 AM Lateral Overflow Called by homeowner for a lateral overflow. 
Staff cleaned the District's main line and 
found no issues. Staff informed the owner to 
call a plumber of their choice. See callout 
map. 

9/22/2023 3:02 PM Lateral Overflow Called by homeowner for a lateral overflow. 
Staff cleaned the District's main line and 
found no issues. Staff informed the owner to 
call a plumber of their choice. See callout 
map. 

9/22/2023 4:58 PM Sewer Main Failure Staff found a break in the sewer main line 
while walking easements on 9/22/2023. Staff 
took immediate action to bypass the 
damaged section of the sewer. A temporary 
repair of the section was made within hours 
of the discovery of the spill. Staff were able 
to restore the flow by 6:33 PM. The location 
of the spill was in a canyon area with heavy 
vegetation. The canyon drained into the 
lower part of Hatton Canyon. Sample 
testing performed by the lab was positive 
for the presence of wastewater. In the 
following week after the spill, staff installed 
a flow meter to capture a daily average 
flow. The spill was estimated to be at 44,159 
gallons based on the daily flow from the 
meter. All necessary reporting was made, 
and a contractor will be hired to make a 
long-term repair to the line segment. See 
attached spill map for the location of spill.  

 
USA Location Requests – 343 
Plumbing permit inspections – 21 
Private Sewer Lateral Compliance Certificates Issued – 19 
 

  

48



10/5/2023

49

lauer
Text Box
September (Red)        35,993 feetAugust (Yellow)           65,736 feetJuly (Green)                28,703 feet                           Monthly Cleaning Maps



Callout Map 

50 

Leg•nd 

SNl•rPlpes 

-

Fo,.,...,.lti 

FUOutfd 

o,w 

i.:�r.matlot1 

SlrlllteNM 

eoun1y1>,ree11 

..... >, 

C..) � 

...... " 
$-, "

..... > 
" 

"-' -
·- s
Q "

t,:$ ;:, 
<l.) $-, "' 

� <1) � 
_,.. ..... ll: 
........ t,:$ " 

� �: 
<l.) <l.) � 

s � � 
$-, ('::$,;; 

� :s 

·r·�·i•···-,i • i 

... . ,,,, •• ·i� 

+·
Created by 

RedZone Robotics 
Revised 10/2015 

50



C.
 

ca
 

:i
 

C.
 

UJ
 

A
i

o
i

u
�

A
U

I 
w:

�q
s

A
s

 
J

�
M

�
S

 
A

J.
?

p
U

B
S

 
.,..

.. 

l ;)
 ! l l S ! 0

 
J g

 l ll
 M

 g
 l s ll

 .M
 {#Jli,..

\
ll

 g
 .I

 V
 

I g
 lU

 .I
 ll

 :)
 ,

,. ,_
-" .. 

I 

; 

( 

51



STAFF REPORT 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Mark Dias, Safety and 

Regulatory Compliance Administrator 
(S/C Admin Dias) 

 
Date:  October 26, 2023 
 
Subject: Monthly Safety Report (for September 2023) 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required  
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Safety & Training 
 

• September 11-21. Annual Safety Weeks. “Safety weeks” are a series of safety 
trainings held over a two-week period each September. Recuring trainings included 
hazardous waste awareness and operations; hazardous waste incident response, 
confined space awareness, confined space rescue, and District policies (Stormwater 
and Spill Prevention).  
 

• September 27- Hazardous Waste Training; Neutralization of Acid Waste. S/C 
Admin Dias gave a live demonstration of how to properly neutralize acidic waste. 
Absorbent pillows and pads contaminated with sulfuric acid were being stored in a 
dedicated waste container and needed to be neutralized. S/C Admin Dias showed 
how to properly neutralize the acidic waste:  identify the waste, select the proper 
protective equipment, select the proper decontamination gear, select the 
decontamination chemical, manage the heat generated from the reactions, avoid 
splashes and fumes, determine that the material was neutralized, and to remember 
to decontaminate all gear and equipment used. 
   

Ongoing Safety Improvements 
Maintenance Superintendent Chris Foley and S/C Admin Dias continued to implement 
safety improvements and seek input from the operations crew and the Safety Committee. 
Activities in September included:  

  

52



 
Improved Confined Space Entry Planning.  Beginning in September and 
continuing for the next few months, standard operating procedures (SOPs) will be 
developed for the various confined spaces at the plant. In September an SOP was 
developed for an entry into a secondary clarifier. The goal is to have an SOP for all 
recurring confined space entries. Entries are infrequent and the entry team members 
change daily depending on who is available. This could contribute to a step or a 
hazard being overlooked. Having a specific SOP for each location will help the entry 
team walk through the planning process, have any special equipment on hand 
during the entry and know the specific steps if a rescue was needed. 

 
Tours and Outreach 
 

• Tours. On-site tours were on hold while several areas of the plant were being 
impacted by Phase II construction. The heavy construction/demolition work has 
been completed. Any remaining work is now taking place indoors or in areas not on 
the tour route. The repaving project began in late August and was completed at the 
end of September. A tour for fifth grade children has been scheduled for October 3.  
 

Injuries; First Aid Incidents; Workers Compensation Claims 
There were no Workers Comp claims or first aid cases in September.  The current matrix 
for 2023 is below.  
 

 Work Related Injuries and Illnesses for 2023 Calendar Year  

TYPE 

New  
Incidents 
(Month) 

Total  
Incidents 

(Year) 

Total Days Away 
from Work 

(Year) 

Total Days of Job 
Restriction 

(Year) 

Cumulative days 
lost  

(Year) 
OSHA 
Injuries 

0 1 5 5 5 

OSHA 
Illnesses 

0 0 0 0 0 

Other WC 
Claims 

0 0 0 0 0 

First Aid 
(non-OSHA) 

0 0 0 0 0 

 
FUNDING 
N/A- Informational item only 

53



% of Total MG

68.896 264.72

31.104 163.03

100.00 427.75

89.087 211.55

8.957 216.68

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

773.12 1209.16 N/A N/A

2889.60 2142.43 N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for

Tertiary's power costs due to the Lab's power usage.

(2) Microturbine system off-line on 8/24 due to the compressor control faults

2190.20 1984.97

 Reclamation Total                                

182,527.92 43,408.43$   50,753.01$   

2023

19,056.43$                             

1885.30

55,389.29$                            

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1206.68

1907.67

1 QTR 3 QTR

1.195

0.118

1312.11

9.46 BG (29.02 K acre-ft.)

1.277

812.02

648.94

0.000

Jul'23

500.09

664.65

0.000

305.19 MG (936.62 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.014

0.878

Aug'23

0.390

22,451.22$   

0.227$           

48,904.80

20,420.29$   31,037.29$   

12,725.31$                            

22,684.41$   

0.249$           28,068.60$                            

20,957.21$   

MF/RO

211.55MG (648.94acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-23)                 

28,068.60$   

13,985.79$                            

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kW-h

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for:               

September 2023

30.048

0.101

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

14,734

Jun'23

2022

Accumulated Totals

28,859.27$                            

90,335.00

81,412.00

92,192.92

32,367.48$                            

July'23

12,505.13$   

28,209.32$                            

19,202.31$                            

1,417,157.00

47,411.63$                            

16,133.96$                            

13,778

June'23

20,566

2 QTR

18,222.74$                            

July'23Sep '23 kW-h (2)

46,291.34$                            

kW-h Per Acre Foot

24,075

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.688 0.887

2023 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

10.491

33.729

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, 

MG

3.021

CAWD Total          

17,553.49$   

0.326

Sep'23

0.000

0.77423.238

Monthly Totals

1.124

0.350

0.090

1.002

Sep'23 kWh

0.237$           

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2023)                      

130,316.80

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.239$           

CAWD Total

CAWD 1409.48

18,381.69$                            

11,614.11$   

Reclamation

1577.57 1448.51

Reclaim Total

19,423.18$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

54



Month

Oct 22

Nov 22

Dec 22

Jan 23

Feb 23

Mar 23

Apr 23

May 23

Jun 23

Jul 23

Aug 23

Sep 23

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

90.000

Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Mar 23 Apr 23 May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

90.000

Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Mar 23 Apr 23 May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

0.000

5.000

10.000

15.000

20.000

25.000

30.000

35.000

40.000

45.000

50.000

Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Mar 23 Apr 23 May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

55



% of Total MG

69.101 241.48

30.899 152.54

100.00 394.02

87.485 181.51

8.766 213.66

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

773.12 1209.16 N/A N/A

2889.60 2142.43 N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for

Tertiary's power costs due to the Lab's power usage.

2190.20 1984.97

 Reclamation Total                                

182,630.20 43,104.70$   46,291.34$   

2023

18,449.90$                             

1885.30

54,713.42$                            

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1206.68

1907.67

1 QTR 3 QTR

1.184

0.118

1208.64

9.43 BG (28.93 K acre-ft.)

1.335

740.74

556.77

0.000

Jun'23

467.91

655.38

0.000

304.86 MG (935.61 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.127

0.863

Jul'23

0.434

22,684.41$   

0.234$           

54,573.84

32,367.48$   30,058.62$   

15,062.49$                            

18,222.74$   

0.238$           28,209.32$                            

20,420.29$   

MF/RO

181.51MG (556.77acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-23)                 

28,068.60$   

16,133.96$                            

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kW-h

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for:               

August 2023

32.645

0.106

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

20,566

May'23

2022

Accumulated Totals

25,060.47$                            

95,386.00

73,779.00

87,244.20

28,859.27$                            

June'23

13,985.79$   

25,257.80$                            

15,599.08$                            

1,403,379.00

40,856.88$                            

9,997.98$                              

24,075

May'23

15,683

2 QTR

19,202.31$                            

July'23Aug '23 kW-h

47,411.63$                            

kW-h Per Acre Foot

14,734

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.781 0.901

2023 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

11.530

37.315

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, 

MG

3.271

CAWD Total          

18,381.69$   

0.346

Aug'23

0.000

0.83225.785

Monthly Totals

1.204

0.372

0.090

1.053

Aug'23 kWh

0.229$           

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2023)                      

128,352.84

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.238$           

CAWD Total

CAWD 1409.48

12,725.31$                            

12,505.13$   

Reclamation

1577.57 1448.51

Reclaim Total

17,553.49$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

56



Month

Sep 22

Oct 22

Nov 22

Dec 22

Jan 23

Feb 23

Mar 23

Apr 23

May 23

Jun 23

Jul 23

Aug 23

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

90.000

Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Mar 23 Apr 23 May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23 Aug 23

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

90.000

Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Mar 23 Apr 23 May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23 Aug 23

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

0.000

5.000

10.000

15.000

20.000

25.000

30.000

35.000

40.000

45.000

50.000

Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Mar 23 Apr 23 May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23 Aug 23

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

57



% of Total MG

68.046 215.70

31.954 141.01

100.00 356.70

85.689 148.86

8.583 210.38

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

773.12 1209.16 N/A N/A

2889.60 2142.43 N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for

Tertiary's power costs due to the Lab's power usage.

2190.20 1984.97

 Reclamation Total                                

196,348.60 46,291.34$   47,411.63$   

2023

19,815.70$                             

1885.30

58,843.12$                            

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1206.68

1907.67

1 QTR 3 QTR

1.296

0.132

1094.18

9.39 BG (28.83 K acre-ft.)

1.336

661.64

456.63

0.000

May'23

432.54

645.35

0.000

304.13 MG (933.38 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.179

0.925

Jun'23

0.475

28,068.60$   

0.232$           

64,741.00

28,859.27$   32,367.48$   

17,864.24$                            

19,202.31$   

0.238$           25,257.80$                            

18,222.74$   

MF/RO

148.86MG (456.63acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-23)                 

28,209.32$   

9,997.98$                              

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kW-h

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for:               

July 2023

33.105

0.107

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

15,683

Apr'23

2022

Accumulated Totals

27,588.90$                            

117,737.00

82,226.00

78,611.60

25,060.47$                            

May'23

16,133.96$   

21,865.57$                            

12,244.15$                            

1,379,304.00

34,109.72$                            

9,724.66$                              

14,734

Apr'23

4,030

2 QTR

15,599.08$                            

June'23Jul '23 kW-h

40,856.88$                            

kW-h Per Acre Foot

20,566

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.826 0.861

2023 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

12.345

38.634

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, 

MG

3.316

CAWD Total          

12,725.31$   

0.353

Jul'23

0.000

0.84826.289

Monthly Totals

1.246

0.398

0.094

1.068

Jul'23 kWh

0.216$           

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2023)                      

146,967.00

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.224$           

CAWD Total

CAWD 1409.48

15,062.49$                            

13,985.79$   

Reclamation

1577.57 1448.51

Reclaim Total

18,381.69$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

58



Month

Aug 22

Sep 22

Oct 22

Nov 22

Dec 22

Jan 23

Feb 23

Mar 23

Apr 23

May 23

Jun 23

Jul 23

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

90.000

Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Mar 23 Apr 23 May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

90.000

Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Mar 23 Apr 23 May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

0.000

5.000

10.000

15.000

20.000

25.000

30.000

35.000

40.000

45.000

50.000

Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Mar 23 Apr 23 May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

59



STAFF REPORT  
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Ray De Ocampo - Laboratory/Environmental 

Compliance Supervisor 
 

Date:             October 26, 2023 
 
Subject: Monthly Report – September 2023 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Receive Report - Informational only; No action required. 
 
DISCUSSION  
LABORATORY REPORT 

• Biobot Analytics continues to provide COVID-19 analysis for Carmel Area Wastewater 
District (CAWD) composite samples of the Influent Pump Station. Biobot samples are 
available upon request and can also be viewed on the CAWD website: Biobot Analytics 
Weekly Reports on SARS-CoV-2.  

• The CDC National Wastewater Surveillance Program has ended the contract for COVID-
19 analysis with Biobot Analytic Laboratory on September 15, 2023, and CDC is in the 
process to find a new contract laboratory.  

 
 

• Laboratory staff participated in annual CAWD safety training from September 10 
through September 22.  
 

• On September 23 and 26 the Collections staff relinquished two sets of samples from a 
sanitary sewer overflow for analysis. The second set of samples included upstream and 
downstream from the original sewer overflow location.  

  

60

https://www.cawd.org/biobot-analytics-weekly-reports-of-concentration-levels-sars-cov-2#/body_file-e72defec-6488-4185-b5f3-ab45b2fe531e
https://www.cawd.org/biobot-analytics-weekly-reports-of-concentration-levels-sars-cov-2#/body_file-e72defec-6488-4185-b5f3-ab45b2fe531e


 
Samples were analyzed according to CAWD’s Spill Emergency Response Plan protocol.  
The sample results were reported to the Collections Superintendent to be included in 
CAWD’s spill report.  
 

• (Project #18-01) On September 28, the laboratory building was connected to CAWD’s 
main motor control center. The laboratory will no longer need to rely on portable 
generators during power outages.  
 

Carmel Area Wd (Ca) - Facility Influent Monkeypox virus in wastewater 

 
 

• Monkey Pox data results for September 3rd and September 9th, 2023, were “not detected” and 
below the limit of detection” (LOD). The Monkey Pox sampling and analysis is on hold until 
the Center for Disease Control (CDC) has a new contract. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 
 

• There were limited source control inspections during the month of September due to two 
weeks of safety training and the absence of one Laboratory Analyst/Environmental Inspector, 
who is on leave until February 2024.  

 
 
 
 
 

61



 
 
 
 

Restaurant Inspections 
 

Restaurant 
 

Compliant 
Reason for Non-

Compliance 
 

Comments 
No Inspections    
         
             

 
Grocery Store/Delicatessen Inspections 

Grocery 
Store/Delicatessen 

 
Compliant 

Reason for Non-
Compliance 

 
Comments 

NA    
 

Compliance Register 
% Compliance Maintenance Mechanical 

         July 2023      98% 100% 
         August 2023                             100% 100% 
         September 2023 NA NA 
   
 
 
 
 
FUNDING 
N/A-Informational item only 
 

62



Project 
Number

GL Task Name Manager Start Finish Current FY 
Budget

Cumulative 
Budget

Status

Projects Implementation Plan Schedule 3/1/18 7/1/40 $0 $0

Treatment Plant Capital Projects 4/30/18 2/29/28 $0 $0

18-01 1620.000 Elec/Mech Rehab and Sludge Holding 
Tank Replacement Project

Treanor 4/30/18 9/29/23 $4,820,750 $9,137,431 In Construction

18-28 1626.000 Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation Treanor 7/1/19 6/30/26 $75,000 $130,020 Planning Stakeholder
Meeting

19-21 1993.000 Carmel River FREE Mitigation Treanor 6/1/20 12/30/25 $0 $0 SHPO Consultation for FEMA
Funding

19-19 1634.000 Aeration Basin Improvements Waggoner 7/1/20 10/13/23 $0 $17,332 In Progress

19-18 1593.000 Perimeter Fencing Treanor 7/1/22 10/15/24 $275,000 $275,000 Design/CEQA

22-03 1639.000 WWTP Gas and Water Main 
Replacement

Treanor 5/2/22 9/30/25 $100,000 $300,000 In Design

22-04 5500.006 CAWD Bridge and Trail Project Treanor 3/1/21 2/29/28 $0 $550 Funding Strategy

22-06 1640.000 Vactor Receiving Station Treanor 7/1/22 8/29/24 $104,950 $354,950 Design Phase

Reclamation Capital Projects 8/2/22 6/28/24 $0 $580,000

22-05 14794 Reclamation 15-Year CIP Master Plan Treanor 8/2/22 6/28/24 $300,000 $300,000 In Progress

Collections Capital Projects 4/16/18 7/1/40 $0 $8,139,000

19-03 1586.000 Carmel Meadows Sewer Replacement Buikema 8/1/19 1/17/25 $2,000,000 $2,471,949 3rd Party Review

20-07 1636.000 Bay/Scenic Pump Station Rehabilitation Lather 12/31/20 6/30/24 $650,000 $680,892 In Design / CEQA

20-08 1635.000 Scenic Rd Pipe Bursting - Ocean to Bay Lather 2/5/21 6/28/24 $3,500,000 $3,731,786 In Design / CEQA

21-05 1637.000 Pescadero Sewer Relocation Lather 7/1/21 6/30/25 $100,000 $1,689,236 In Design / CEQA

22-07 1641.000 Emergency Lorca Lane Sewer Relocation Lather 8/30/22 5/31/23 $175,000 $0 In Construction

23-01 Santa Rita & Gudalupe Pipeline Rehab Lather 1/1/23 6/28/24 $0 $0 In Design

20-06 Collections 15-Year CIP Lather 7/1/20 7/1/40 $0 $62,899,430 Work In Progress

Collections Non-Capital Projects 7/3/18 2/27/25 $0 $0

20-05 River Watch Agreement Lather 2/21/20 2/21/24 $0 $0 Work In Progress

Assessment Districts/Annexations Lather 7/3/18 2/27/25 $0 $105,000

18-21 1631.000/
2505.000

Corona Road Assessment District Lather 8/2/18 3/15/24 $0 $0 In Design / CEQA

19-08 1632.000 Carmel Valley Manor Pipeline and Pump 
Station

Lather 7/3/18 2/15/24 $0 $0 In Construction

18-29 9095.000 September Ranch Subdivision Lather 9/1/22 8/30/24 $0 $0 In Construction

23-03 Rancho Cañada Village Subdivision Lather 3/1/23 2/27/25 $0 $0 Sewer Agreement

Tank Replacement Project

Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation

Carmel River FREE Mitigation

on Basin Improvements

Perimeter Fencing

WWTP Gas and Water Main Replacemen

CAWD Bridge and Trail Pro

Vactor Receiving Station

Reclamation 15-Year CIP Master Plan

Meadows Sewer Replacement

/Scenic Pump Station Rehabilitation/Scenic Pump Station Rehabilitation

enic Rd Pipe Bursting - Ocean to Bay

Pescadero Sewer Relocation

Emergency Lorca Lane Sewer Relocation

Santa Rita & Gudalupe Pipeline RehabSanta Rita & Gudalupe Pipeline Rehab

Collections 15-Year CIPCollections 15-Year CIP

er Watch Agreementer Watch Agreement

essment District

ine and Pump Stationine and Pump Station

September Ranch SubdivisionSeptember Ranch Subdivision

Rancho Cañada Village SubdivisionRancho Cañada Village Subdivision

H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1
21 2022 2023 2024 202

63



Project 
Number

GL Task Name Manager Start Finish Current FY 
Budget

Cumulative 
Budget

Status

Other Non-Capital Projects 3/1/18 2/29/40 $0 $0

Workforce Now Foley 3/1/18 3/1/18 $0 $0 Implementation

Real Property Investigation Buikema 3/1/18 3/1/18 $75,000 $75,000 Ongoing

Cyber Security Foley 3/1/18 3/1/18 $17,000 $17,000 Ongoing

Source Control Six Sigma Buikema 3/1/18 3/1/18 $0 $0 On Hold

22-01 5500.006 Long Term SLR Planning Buikema /
Treanor

5/3/21 2/29/40 $260,000 $1,400,000 2023 Study Complete Long Term SLR Planning

H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1
21 2022 2023 2024 202

64



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Treatment Plant Capital Project Summaries 
 

 

65



 
Photo: New Sludge Tank Under Construction 

  
Project Number: 18-01 
Project Name: Wastewater Treatment Plant 

(WWTP) – Elec/Mech Rehab & 
Sludge Holding Tank Replacement 
Project 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: In Construction 
Project 
Description: 

This project is a multi-area project 
at the WWTP aimed at mitigating 
risk of failure in the Influent Pump 
Station, Headworks, 3W/Chlorine 
Analyzer Building, Effluent Building 
and Sludge Storage Tank. Most of 
the work involves replacing aged 
electrical and mechanical 
equipment in existing buildings. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$9,137,431 
Cumulative Spent: 
$9,044,715 

FY Budget: 
$4,820,750 

FY Spent: 
$1,273,583 

Reclamation 
Share: 

Estimated at 2.7% of project cost.  

Other Entities: Pebble Beach Community Services 
District, CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation 
Project 

Permits Required: Coastal Commission Notification 
Challenges: Electrical Equipment Supply Chains 
Schedule: • Construction anticipated for 

FY2021/2022 into FY2022/2023 
Consultants: Design: Kennedy/Jenks Consultants  

Construction Management: Currie 
Engineers 

Contractor: Clark Bros. Inc. 
 

 

 

Photo: Eucalyptus trees on South Side of Treatment Plant 

  
Project Number: 18-28 
Project Name: Perimeter Tree Plan and 

Implementation 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: Planning Stakeholder Meeting 
Project 
Description: 

Planning and landscaping around the 
treatment plant. This will include 
looking into possibly replacing the 
non-native eucalyptus trees around 
the perimeter of the treatment plant 
with native tree species. The project 
will start with a study and a plan to 
determine costs, sequencing 
schedule, and visual impacts. The 
Eucalyptus trees around the plant 
have ongoing maintenance costs, 
which may be offset in the long term 
with a different type of tree screening. 
The purpose is to improve security 
around plant perimeter.  

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$130,020 

Cumulative  
Spent: 
$5,020  

FY Budget: 
$75,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation: N/A 
Other Entities: N/A 
Permits Required: Currently unknown (In Study Phase) 

Challenges: Time it will take for new trees to 
grow up that will fully screen 
treatment plant from view 

Schedule: • Study moved to 2023; anticipate 
completion 06-30-26 

Consultants: Scott Hall Landscape Design 
Contractor: TBD 

66



 

 

Photo: Carmel River Floodplain Restoration and 
Environmental Enhancement (CRFREE) 

Project Number: 19-21 
Project Name: Carmel River Floodplain 

Restoration & Environmental 
Enhancement (CRFREE) Mitigation  

Project Location: Carmel River Lagoon 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: State Historic Preservation Office 

Consultation for Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) 
Funding 

Project 
Description: 

The CRFREE Project intends to 
create a new river channel in the 
Carmel River lagoon floodplain, 
which will significantly impact 
existing wastewater pipelines that 
cross the lagoon. To fully mitigate 
impacts from CRFREE the pipelines, 
which are currently crossing over a 
portion of the lagoon, are proposed 
to be installed underground using 
Horizontal Directional Drilling 
construction methods.   

Department: Engineering 
Financial: Coastal 

Conservancy 
Grant Budget: 
$750,000 

Cumulative Spent: 
$618,569 
FY Spent: 
$0 

** Project is being funded by CRFREE initiated grants 

Reclamation 
Share: 

N/A 

Other Entities: Monterey County 
Permits Required: Coastal Commission, CA Fish and 

Wildlife, Army Corp of Engineers, 
Reginal Water Quality Control Board 
(RWQCB) 

Challenges: Construction near environmentally 
sensitive habitat and obtaining new 
easement from State Parks 

Schedule: • Construction anticipated in 2025 
Consultants: Design: Kennedy Jenks and Staheli 

Trenchless 
CEQA: Johnson Marigot 

Contractor: TBD 
 

 
Photo: Existing air diffuser system 

  
Project Number: 19-19 
Project Name: WWTP – Aeration Basin 

Improvements 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Waggoner 

Status: In Progress 
Project Description: The Aeration Basins 4A & 4B 

need to have additional 
diffusers installed to ensure the 
proper air (oxygen) transfer into 
the wastewater to support the 
aerobic microorganisms in the 
basins.  

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$17,332 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$17,332  

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation Share: N/A 

Other Entities: N/A 

Permits Required: N/A 

Challenges: Weather conditions and 
Scheduling 

Schedule: • Design is complete 
• Materials ordered and 

received  
• Construction currently on 

hold 
Consultants: N/A 

Contractor: N/A 
 

67



 
Photo: Existing Dilapidated Fence 

  
Project Number: 19-18 
Project Name: Perimeter Fencing 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment 
Plant (WWTP) 

Project Manager: Treanor 

Status: Design/CEQA 
Project Description: Install a new fence around 

the perimeter of the 
WWTP. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$275,000 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$49,801 

FY Budget: 
$275,000 

FY Spent: 
$945 

Reclamation Share: N/A 

Other Entities: N/A 

Permits Required: California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) 
Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (MND), Coastal 
Developmental Permit 
(CDP) Notification 

Challenges: Environmental Mitigations 

Schedule: • Design in FY2022-2023 
• Construction in 

FY2023-2024 
Consultants: Kennedy Jenks 

Contractor: TBD 
 

 
Photo: Gas Meter on North Side of River 

  
Project Number: 22-03 
Project Name: WWTP Gas and Water Main 

Replacement 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 

Status: In Design 
Project Description: The WWTP natural gas and water 

utility service exists on the 
opposite side of the Carmel River 
from the WWTP. CAWD owns the 
piping under the river for these 
utilities. The water line and gas 
line are PVC and identified as 
having a high risk of failure. The 
gas line is needed for plant 
operations to provide 
supplementary heating to the 
digesters for thermophilic 
digestion. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$300,000 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$43,444 

FY Budget: 
$100,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation Share: N/A 

Other Entities: Cost Share w/ Collections @ 5.5% 

Permits Required: TBD 
Challenges: Underground work in riparian 

area 
Schedule: • Currently undergoing 

alternatives analysis study 
• Design in FY2022-2023 
• Construction in FY2023-2024 

Consultants: Kennedy Jenks 

Contractor: N/A 
68



 
Photo: Conceptual Rendering of Public Use and Bridge 

  
Project Number: 22-04 
Project Name: CAWD Bridge and Trail Project 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 

Status: Funding Strategy 
Project Description: Construct a new bridge at the 

location of the existing CAWD 
bridge over the Carmel River. The 
Bridge would be open for public 
use and would allow for new 
walking trails to connect the City 
of Carmel-by-the-Sea (Mission 
Trail) to the Regional Parks (Palo 
Corona). 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$550 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$3,354 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$2,386 

**No budget. Funding potential via Carmel River 
settlement grants. 
Reclamation Share: N/A 

Other Entities: State Parks, Diocese of Monterey, 
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, 
Regional Parks District 

Permits Required: TBD 

Challenges: Obtaining Funding and 
Community Support 

Schedule: Currently working on video and 
marketing outreach effort 

Consultants: TBD 

Contractor: TBD 

 

 
Photo: CAWD Vactor Truck 

  
Project Number: 22-06 
Project Name: Vactor Receiving Station 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 

Status: Design Phase 
Project Description: Construct a new Vactor Receiving 

Station for the Collections 
Department and the disposal of 
waste collected in the vactor 
truck.  

Department: Treatment 

Financial: Cumulative 
Budget: 
$354,950 

Cumulative  
Spent: 
$86,688 

FY Budget: 
$104,950 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation Share: N/A 

Other Entities: N/A 

Permits Required: Coastal Developmental Permit 
(CDP) Notification 

Challenges: Design for ultimate user 
satisfaction. 

Schedule: Construction in FY2023/2024 

Consultants: Kennedy Jenks 

Contractor: TBD 

 

 

69



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reclamation Capital Project Summaries 
 

 

70



 
Photo: Existing totes used for Sulfuric Acid storage 

and Feed  
  
Project Number: 18-26 
Project Name: Sulfuric Acid & Citric Acid 

Storage & Feed Systems 
Project 

Project Location: Reclamation – Microfiltration 
(MF)/Reverse Osmosis (RO) 

Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: Completed 
Project 
Description: 

Code compliance upgrades for 
existing acid chemical storage 
and feed system used by 
Reclamation for enhancing RO 
recovery. Project includes code 
compliant secondary 
containment and separation of 
dissimilar chemicals. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$455,923 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$386,209 

FY Budget: 
$334,000 

FY Spent: 
$260,741 

Reclamation 
Share: 

100%  

Other Entities: Reclamation Project 
Permits Required: Coastal Commission 

Notification 
Challenges: Hazardous Chemical Safety 
Schedule: Anticipated Completion mid 

2023 
Consultants: Trussell Technologies, Inc 
Contractor: Monterey Peninsula 

Engineering 
 

 

 

 
Photo: Exterior of Tertiary Building  

  
Project Number: 22-05 
Project Name: Reclamation MF/RO and 

Tertiary System 15-Year Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) 
Master Plan 

Project Location: Reclamation – Microfiltration 
(MF)/Reverse Osmosis (RO) and 
Tertiary Building 

Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: In Progress 
Project Description: Asset management condition and 

risk evaluations, development of 
projections of capital 
expenditures, and preliminary 
engineering planning 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$300,000 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$91,609 

FY Budget: 
$300,000 

FY Spent: 
$91,609 

Reclamation Share: 100%  

Other Entities: Reclamation Project 
Permits Required: None 
Challenges: Complexity 
Schedule: Planning Process will extend into 

FY 2023/2024 
Consultants: Kennedy Jenks 

Trussell Technologies, Inc 
Contractor: N/A 

71



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Collections Capital Project Summaries 
 

 

 

  

72



 
Photo: View gravity pipe in Carmel easement  

  
Project Number: 19-03 
Project Name: Carmel Meadows Sewer 

Replacement  
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Buikema 
Status: 3rd Party Review 
Project 
Description: 

The project will replace 1,300 
feet of Ductile Iron Pipe (DIP) on 
an aerial span and eight 
manholes by constructing a small 
pump station at the end of 
Mariposa Drive. This project is 
located on an easement parallel 
to Ribera Road and was originally 
installed in the early 1960's. 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$2,471,949 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$644,256 

FY Budget: 
$2,000,000 

FY Spent: 
$29,212 

Permits Required: Coastal Permit and 
Environmental Review 

Challenges: Redirecting the sewer to the 
pump station without requiring 
ejector pumps for all individual 
houses. 

Schedule: Design and Environmental 
Review completed 6/28/22. 
Construction on hold for 
permitting. 

Consultants: SRT Consultants, WRA         
Environmental, TBC 
Communications, Carollo/Harris 
& Assoc 

Contractor: TBD 
 

 

 

  Photo: Looking at Pump Station Exterior 
  
Project Number: 20-07 
Project Name: Bay/Scenic Pump Station 

Rehabilitation 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In Design / CEQA 
Project 
Description: 

Remodel the interior of the pump 
station and update the SCADA 
panel to minimize areas prone to 
flooding. 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$680,892 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$103,279 

FY Budget: 
$650,000 

FY Spent: 
$26,523 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: Carmel-by-the-Sea, Coastal 

Commission 
Permits Required: Exemptions from CEQA and 

Coastal  dependent on panel 
location requirements. 

Challenges: Traffic Control, Panel Location 
away from bluff 

Schedule: Construct 2023/2024 Fiscal Year 
Consultants: SRT Consultant 

Contractor: Pending 
 

 

 

73



 

Photo: Pipe Bursting Limits on Scenic 
  
Project Number: 20-08 
Project Name: Scenic Rd Pipe Bursting - Ocean 

to Bay 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In Design / CEQA 
Project Description: Replace approximately 9,525 

linear feet of existing 6-inch clay 
pipe with a new 8-inch High-
Density Polyethylene (HDPE) 
and includes manhole 
rehabilitation. 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$3,731,786 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$364,903 

FY Budget: 
$3,500,000 

FY Spent: 
$30,211 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: Carmel-by-the-Sea, Coastal 

Commission 
Permits Required: CEQA & Coastal Commission 

permit required. 
Challenges: Traffic control & poorly mapped 

underground utilities. Cultural 
Resources at southern end of 
project. 

Schedule: CEQA complete 2/1/2024, 
Construction Fall 2024 

Consultants: MNS, Rincon, TBC 
Communications 

Contractor: Pending 

 

Photo: Sewer Line at Pescadero Creek 
  
Project Number: 21-05 
Project Name: Pescadero Sewer Relocation 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In Design / CEQA 
Project Description: Relocate damaged pipe from 

creek slope to roadway 
Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$1,689,236 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$196,796 

FY Budget: 
$100,000  

FY Spent: 
$14,541 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: N/A 
Permits Required: Environmental Review 

Challenges: Narrow road, depth of manhole, 
houses to be placed on ejector 
pumps 

Schedule: Start design, public outreach, & 
Environmental in Winter 2023. 

Consultants: MNS, Denise Duffy, TBC 
Communications & Media 

Contractor: TBD 

 

74



 

    Photo: LT Capital Schedule 
  
Project Number: 20-06 
Project Name: Collections 15 -Year CIP 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: Work in Progress 
Project 
Description: 

Utilize updated sewer line 
inspection information and flow 
modeling to develop a 20-year 
Construction Improvement Plan  

Department: Collections 
Projection of 
Total Capital 
Costs-15-Yr $63M 

Construction 
Costs: $63M 

Administration 
Costs: $10M (20% 
engineering, legal, 
admin.) 

Financial: Cumulative 
15YR Budget: 
EST $63M 

Cumulative Spent: 
 
N/A 

FY Budget: 
N/A 

FY Spent: 
N/A 

Reclamation 
Share: 

 
0% 

Other Entities: River Watch Agreement-see project 
#20-05 

Permits Required: none 
Challenges: Completing all projects near water 

bodies in time for the February 
2024 deadline is unlikely due to lack 
of public approval.  

Schedule: 2020 - 2040 
Consultants: West Yost 

Contractor: N/A 

 

Lorca Lane Sewer Replacement 
 

  
Project Number: 22-07 
Project Name: Lorca Lane Sewer 

Replacement 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: In Construction 
Project Description: Relocate 300’ of 6” line and 

installation of a  manhole at 
Lorca Lane and Del Monte 
Street.  

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$175,000 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$84,915 

FY Budget: 
$153,500 

FY Spent: 
$3,433 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: Carmel-by-the-Sea, Coastal 

Commission 
Permits Required: None 
Challenges: Weather and high 

groundwater table 
Schedule: Construction to commence 

in September 2023 
Consultants: Monterey Bay Engineering 

Contractor: Monterey Peninsula 
Engineering 

 

 

 

 

75



Santa Rita & Guadalupe #23-01 
 

  
Project 
Number: 

23-01 

Project 
Name: 

Santa Rita & Guadalupe 

Project 
Location: 

Collection System 

Project 
Manager: 

Lather 

Status: In Design  
Project 
Description: 

Approx. 5,800 ft of 6”vitrified clay 
pipe to be replaced with 8” HDP  

Financial: Cumulative 
Budget: 
$3,869,330 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$73,172 

FY Budget: 
$171,464 

FY Spent: 
$27,169 

Reclamation 
Share: 

0% 

Other 
Entities: 

Carmel-by-the-Sea,  

Permits 
Required: 

None 

Challenges: Traffic Controls 
Schedule: Construct Spring 2024.  Preliminary 

Plans Complete.   
Consultants: MNS Engineers 
Contractor: TBD 

76



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Collections Non-Capital Project Summaries 

 

77



 

Photo: River Watch logo 
  
Project Number: 20-05 
Project Name: River Watch Agreement 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: Work in Progress 
Project 
Description: 

Work with Collections to provide 
data that is needed to satisfy the 
milestones in the agreement 
with River Watch. As of May 
2022, staff completed all of the 
1,478 District manholes for the 
Fiscal Year 2022-2023.  

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
N/A 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
N/A 

FY Budget: 
N/A 

FY Spent: 
N/A 

Reclamation 
Share: 

0% 

Other Entities: River Watch 
Permits 
Required: 

none 

Challenges: Completing all projects near 
water bodies in time is unlikely 
for the February 2024 deadline 
due to lack of public approval. 

Schedule: Due date February 2024 
Consultants:  
Contractor: N/A 

 

 

Pipeline Spot Repair 2023-02 
 

  

Project Number: 23-02 
Project Name: Pipeline Spot Repair 2023 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lather 
Status: Completed -Notice of 

Completion approved in the 
August Board meeting. County 
Conformed notice received 9-5-
2023. 

Project Description: Bid award in April 2023  

Department: Collections 
Financial:   Note that 
only $10,900 met 
our capitalization 
threshold.  All other 
dollar amounts were 
expensed 

Cumulative 
Budget: 
$130,570 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$127,653 

FY Budget: 
$118,700 

FY Spent: 
$127,653 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: Carmel-by-the-Sea,  

Permits Required: None 
Challenges:  
Schedule: Construct 2023 
Consultants:  

Contractor: Rooter King 

 

 

78



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Assessment Districts/Annexations 

 

79



 
Photo: Areas of Potential Annexation 

  
Project 
Number: 

18-21 

Project Name: Corona Road Sewer Assessment District 
Project 
Location: 

Corona Road Neighborhood 
 

Project 
Manager: 

Lather 

Status: In design phase by Assessment Engineer.  
Ongoing organizing efforts for Special 
Assessment District. 
The revised boundary map was approved 
by Board of Supervisors on August 22, 
2023. The Board of Supervisor in October 
approved an amendment on October 
3,2023.  The next step is send out the 
assessment notice and ballots for 
formation of Assessment District. 

Project 
Description: 

The project will provide sewer facilities to 
the Corona Road neighborhood and 
parcels on the west side of Highway 1, 
across from Corona Road. #18-21 Corona 
Road (Deferred Revenue**) 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$0 

Cumulative Spent: 
$64,848.24 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$64,848.24 

** No Budget included for project because the initial costs 
were funded by Corona Road residents.  District has agreed 
to fund a portion of environmental work $56,200 (Res 
#2022-62). Resolution 2023-57 amended Resolution 2023-
26 clarifies reimbursement of District funds will be 
reimbursed by the assessment bond. 
Permits 
Required: 

Coastal Permit, CalTrans Encroachment 
permit, Environmental Review 

Challenges: Assessment District process/approval and 
obtaining easements for pump station. 
Funds from homeowners in the amount 
of $67K have been received by CAWD.  

Schedule: Assessment District (AD) proceedings 
pending approval of Septic to Sewer Grant 
& Loan Funding.  Estimate start AD process 
in June 2023. The boundary map was 

approved by Board of Supervisors on 
August 22, 2023. 

Consultant: Denise Duffy & Associates and Monterey 
Bay Engineers 

  

80



 

Photo: Entrance to Carmel Valley Manor 
  
Project 
Number: 

19-08 

Project Name: Carmel Valley Manor Pipeline and 
Pump Station 

Project 
Location: 

Collection System 

Project 
Manager: 

Lather 

Status: In Construction 
Project 
Description: 

Sewer extension project to be 
completed by the owners of Carmel 
Valley Manor to connect to CAWD’s 
sewer system. Riley Ranch, #19-08 
Carmel Valley Manor (Deferred 
Revenue)  

Department: Collections 
Financial: this is 
an unbudgeted 
item- under 
repayment 
agreement (no 
funds received)- 

Cumulative 
Budget: 
$0 

Cumulative  
Spent: 
$180 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Other Entities: The prospect of a pipeline has given 
rise to a plethora of potential 
additional connections. 

Permits 
Required: 

County Encroachment Permit, 
Environmental Review completed.  

Challenges: Funding, Repayment Agreement, 
easement agreements Local Agency 
Formation Council (LAFCO) annexation 

Schedule: Approved without protest at 3/22/21 
LAFCO hearing. Easement and Sewer 
Extension Agreements signed in 
September 2022.  Construction is in 
progress. 

Consultants: MNS and Rincon are working for 
Carmel Valley Manor to permit and 
design the project.  

Contractor: N/A 

 

 
 
 
 

Photo: Location of Rancho Cañada Village Subdivision 
  
Project 
Number: 

23-03 

Project Name: Rancho Cañada Village Subdivision 
Project 
Location: 

Collection System 

Project 
Manager: 

Lather 

Status: Sewer Agreement 
Project 
Description: 

 

Department: Collections 
Financial: this is 
an unbudgeted 
item- under 
repayment 
agreement (no 
funds received)- 

Cumulative 
Budget: 
$0 

Cumulative  
Spent: 
$ 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Other Entities:  
Permits 
Required: 

 

Challenges:  

Schedule:  
Consultants:  

Contractor:  

81



 

 

 

 

 

 

Other Non-Capital Project Summaries 

 

 

82



 

            ADP Workforce Now 

Photo: ADP Clip Art 
Project Number: N/A 
Project Name: Workforce Now 
Project Location: All Supervisor Locations 
Project Manager: Foley 
Status: Implementation 
Project 
Description: 

Implementation of a 
comprehensive Human Resource 
(HR) software database for all 
supervisors and employees to 
utilize. Modules provide employee 
development tracking, benefits 
administration, custom 
performance review templates, 
and employee goal management. 

Department: Administration 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$0 

Cumulative Spent: 
$2,520 (annual fee) 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$2,520 (annual fee) 

Challenges: Technical issues need to be 
resolved & employee training. 
Implementation of advanced 
features for employee 
development and learning 
management.   

Schedule: Implemented in April 2023. HCM 
Unlocked Consultant hired for 
specialized implementation 
services.  Currently working on 
Timesheet component. 

Consultants: ADP 
 

 

 

 
 

 

Photo: Real Estate Clip Art 

  
Project Number: N/A 
Project Name: Real Property Investigation 
Project Location: Carmel Valley 
Project Manager: Barbara Buikema 
Status: Evaluation in Progress 
Project 
Description: 

An investigation of a possible 
new treatment facility site in the 
mouth of the Carmel Valley, 
which is in response to the 
Coastal Commission requirement 
to move facilities within 30 years. 

Department: Administration 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$75,000 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$0 

FY Budget: 
$75,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Permits Required: None – at this time 

Challenges: Limited land possibilities, 
regulatory hurdles, and zoning 

Schedule: open ended 
Consultants: Mahoney & Associates 

 

  

83

https://youtu.be/0_dJBfrta9g


 
Photo: Cyber Security Clip Art 

  
Project Number: N/A 
Project Name: Cyber Security 
Project Location: District-wide 
Project Manager: Chris Foley 
Status: Ongoing 
Project Description: Internal Cyber Security 

Incident Response Team 
(CSIRT) formed, and they are 
working on a response plan & 
training. The upgrades to 
email filtering system have 
been completed. Stricter 
geofencing policies have been 
put in place, and a cold backup 
system that is sandboxed from 
the network were installed 
March 2022.   

Department: All 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$17,000 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$0 

FY Budget: 
$17,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Challenges: Ongoing training & the need 
for continual upgrades as skills 
of hackers grow. 

Schedule: Continually updating 
Consultant: Exceedio 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Photo: Six Sigma Clip Art 

  
Project Number: N/A 
Project Name: Source Control Six Sigma 

Project Location: Management staff 
Project Manager: Barbara Buikema 
Status: On Hold 
Project 
Description: 

A Six Sigma project to improve 
source control activities by 
focusing majority of inspection and 
compliance efforts on restaurants 
determined to be likely causes of 
grease in District lines. 

Department: Administration 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$0 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$2,000 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Permits Required: None 
Challenges: Implementation phase.  Discussing 

next steps in implementation. 
Schedule: Ongoing 
Consultants: Self-study online 

 

  

84



 

Photo: California coastline  
  
Project Number: 22-01 
Project Name: Long-Term Sea Level Rise Planning 
Project Location: Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Barbara Buikema/Patrick Treanor 
Status: 2023 Study Complete 
Project 
Description: 

As conditions of Coastal Permit #3-
82-199-A8 - the District submitted 
its Long-Term Coastal Hazards Plan 
on 03-03-22.  Board approved a 
Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Alternatives Planning Assistance 
on Sea Level Rise consultant 
services contract in May 2022.   

Department: Administration 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$1,400,00 

Cumulative 
Spent: 
$219,862 

FY Budget: 
$260,000 

FY Spent: 
$219,862 

Permits Required: In response to California Coastal 
Commission 

Challenges: Establishing focus on long term 
objectives and committing to 
follow through items as outlined… 

Schedule: WWTP Relocation Planning 
Alternatives on Sea Level Rise 
presented in  May 2022 .  Planning 
to present Greeley & Hansen 
report in fall 2023. 

Consultants: Greeley & Hansen 

 

 

 

 

85



STAFF REPORT 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From: Ed Waggoner, Operations Superintendent                                             
 
Date:  October 26, 2023 
 
Subject: Monthly Operations Reports – September 

2023 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required. 
 
DISCUSSION  

Plant Operation 
Treatment Plant: 

• The treatment plant operations staff has continued finishing projects and 
concentrating on Preventative Maintenance Work Orders during the month of 
September. 

• (Project #18-01) Startup and testing of electrical equipment on the effluent pump 
station and the chlorine disinfection building. 

• (Project #18-01) Programmable Logic Controller/Supervisory Control and Data 
Acquisition (PLC/SCADA). Operations staff continues working with 
Maintenance and Frisch Engineering on the upgrades and programming of the 
PLC/SCADA System.  

• The Enersponse Demand Reduction event occurred on September 27 from 6:00 
pm till 8:00 pm. 

Reclamation: 
• Staff continued preventative maintenance work on pumps, motors, and any 

equipment that needs maintenance for the Microfiltration (MF) and Reverse 
Osmosis Systems (ROS).  

• Staff completed Clean-in-Place (CIP) cleans on Microfiltration (MF) Cells 1, 2, and 
3. The cells cleaned successfully with Trans Membrane Pressures (TMPs) 
pressures ranging between 1.8 to 5.5 pounds per square inch (psi).  

• (Project #21-09) Programmable Logic Controller/Supervisory Control and Data 
Acquisition (PLC/SCADA). Operations staff continues working with 
Maintenance and Frisch Engineering on the upgrades and programming of the 
PLC/SCADA System.  
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

86



Training: 
• Staff participated in scheduled tailgate safety meetings in the Digester building 

conference room. 
• The Operations and Laboratory staff participated in the annual two-week safety 

training from September 11 through the 22 at the treatment facility. 
• The Operations Superintendent participated in the Monterey Bay Water Works 

Association annual training and vendor show at Castroville Community Center 
on the afternoon of September 14. 

Capital Improvement:  
• Staff continues working with Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor, on Project #18-01, 

the Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement 
Project for the following areas: Influent Pump Station, Headworks, Blower 
Building, Chlorination/Dechlorination Building, Effluent Building, Digester No. 1, 
Digester No. 1 Control Building and Dewatering Building. 

Meetings Attended 
• September 1, the Operations Superintendent, Maintenance Superintendent, and 

the District Engineer participated in the annual Water Awareness Committee’s 
Water Showcase at the Monterey County Fair. With a public information booth 
showcasing  Carmel Area Wastewater District. 

• September 12, Operations Superintendent attended a Zoom meeting with the 
Monterey Bay Water Works Association for upcoming training events. 

• September 14, Operations Superintendent attended a Zoom meeting with the 
Water Awareness Committee of Monterey County. 

• (Project #18-01) Weekly Teams meeting on the construction progress of the 
Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement 
Project for the following areas: Influent Pump Station, Headworks, Blower 
Building, Chlorination/Dechlorination Building, Effluent Building, Digester No. 
1, Digester No. 1 Control Building and Dewatering Building. 

Discharge Permit Violations 
• There were no violations of Reclamation Permit 93-72 for the month of August 

2023.  
• There was 1 violation of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 

(NPDES) Number CA0047996, Order No. R3-2014-0012 within the month of 
August 2023. These violations occur in Section III, A.1.a of Effluent Limitations 
and Discharge Specifications. See attached letter to Central Coast Regional Board 
for details of the violations.  

 
 

FUNDING 
N/A-Informational item only 
 

87



 
 District    Carmel   Area    Wastewater     
       P.O. Box 221428 Carmel California 93922  (831) 624-1248   FAX (831) 624-0811 
 

 
Barbara Buikema 
General Manager 
Edward Waggoner 

Operations Superintendent 
Robert R. Wellington 

Legal Counsel 

Board of Directors 

Gregory D'Ambrosio 
Michael K. Rachel 
Robert Siegfried 
Kevan Urquhart 

Ken White

 
Peter VonLangen and Kristina Olmos, 
 
July Permit Violation(s): 
The NPDES order No. R3-2014-0012 (B) Effluent Limitations- Discharge 001, Table 4 states, 1. “Total Suspended Solids 
(TSS) Maximum Daily of 90 mg/L” 2.  “Total Suspended Solids (TSS) Average Weekly of 45 mg/L, and “Total Suspended 
Solids (TSS) Average Monthly of 30 mg/L for Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD).  
 
CAWD experienced one total violation for the month of August 2023. 

1. One exceedance of the Maximum Daily limit of 90 mg/L. 
a. August 2nd the report valve was 96 mg/L. 

 
Effluent Building Bypass Event: 
On July 14, 2023, as part of the Wastewater Treatment Plant Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding 
Tank Replacement Project the Effluent Building (EFF-001) required a pump bypass system of the effluent pump wet well 
to be installed so all the upgraded electrical and mechanical work could be performed. This bypass required the use of 
two remote pumps and associated piping.  
 
The remote pumps suction piping was installed in the first wet well entering the Effluent pump station building. This 
small wet well combines the RO Reject flow stream with any plant secondary effluent which then flows into the effluent 
pumps wet well for final disposal through the plant outfall line for ocean discharge. Since 2008, during dry weather 
flows, this first wet well receives only RO Reject flow during the summer irrigation season.   
 
The wet well is covered with open grating which allows sunlight into wet well which helps promote algae growth on the 
walls of the wet well. This algae growth is sloughing off as the water level changes along with the turbulence created by 
the effluent entering the small size of the wet well. 
 
A consequence of the two factors listed above and the size of the wet well allowed the temporary installed bypass pump 
system suction hoses to stir up any settled solids within the wet well caused an elevated Total Suspended Solids 
composite sample that exceeded the 90 mg/L as outline in Effluent Limitations-Discharge 001 on August 2nd, Table 4, TSS 
Maximum Daily concentration outlined in NPDES permit R3-2014-0012.  
 
Permit Violation Events:  
On August 2nd, 2023, laboratory staff performed the required total suspended solids analysis from the 24Hr composite 
sampler at discharge point EFF-001 which resulted in a concentration of 96.0 mg/L. Since RO Reject concentrate is the 
only flow stream sent for ocean discharge staff performed an analysis on 24-hour composite samples collected prior to 
the effluent bypass pump from the RO Reject concentrate which resulted in a TSS concentration average of 1.2 mg/L 
during the same periods.   
 
 

88



Corrective Measures: Staff has continued washing down the walls of the wet well to prevent the algae growth 
from attaching to the walls and temporary piping. However, the temporary pump suction hoses prevented staff from 
gaining proper access to the wet well thus washing the wet well walls has helped a little, but not eliminating the 
problem completely. 
 
Staff initiated a flush program on the small wet well by pumping plant effluent back into the headworks three times a 
week while the effluent building upgrades are taking place for the remainder of August. Staff also covered the smaller 
wet well with black plastic to prevent algae growth in the wet well.  This flushing scheduled kept the Effluent TSS in the 
range of 16 to 27 mg/L well below the Maximum Daily, weekly and monthly limits for the remainder of August. 
 
The effluent lift station and outfall rehabilitation was completed on August 30th and back into normal operation on 
September 1st. 
 

Respectfully Submitted,  

 

Edward Waggoner 
Operations Superintendent 
Carmel Area Wastewater District 
Phone (831) 624-1249, ext. 291 
waggoner@cawd.org 
 

 
 

 

 

 

89

mailto:waggoner@cawd.org


STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 
 
Date:  October 26, 2023 
 
Subject: Monthly Maintenance Report – September 2023 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required.  
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Maintenance Projects in Progress/Completed 

 
• The digester ferric chloride pump was replaced with a more robust pump. The 

original pump was a gear drive and required frequent rebuilds. The replacement 
pump is a diaphragm style which will reduce the amount of maintenance required. 
The new pump has improved control so that dosing can be optimized to reduce 
chemical usage.  

 
• Generator radiators were replaced at Highlands pump station, 8th & Scenic pump 

stations and 50-Kilowatt portable generator. The salt air caused deterioration, so the 
radiators were changed before they failed.  
 

• Maintenance staff completed installation of skimmer arm scraper on secondary 
clarifier #2. This required a confined space entry and verification of torque switch 
settings after the work was completed.  
 

• The check valves for the microfiltration/reverse osmosis sump pumps were 
replaced. The existing check valves were worn and would get stuck which 
prevented the pumps from operating correctly.  
 

 
Upcoming Maintenance Projects  

 
 

• Update 1: New check valves were ordered for the pump stations. The valves arrived 
and the installation will be scheduled for late October.   

 
 

90



 
• Staff are installing new piping for a lower capacity pump for the reverse osmosis 

(RO) clean-in-place (CIP) system. The current larger pump failed due to a design 
characteristic that created a potential for air to enter the pump. Operations, 
Maintenance and Engineering worked together on a solution to improve the system 
to prevent another failure. The new system will utilize the original pump for higher 
flow cleanings and the new lower capacity pump for stage 3 and stage 4 cleanings.  
 

• The variable frequency drive (VFD) for the microfiltration feed pump P121 failed. 
This VFD is past its useful life and obsolete. It will be replaced with a new model.  
 

• The microturbine gas compressor failed and the vendor has been scheduled for a 
site visit to troubleshoot. The system is currently offline. The issue is a 
communications fault with the motor controller.  

 
 
 
 

Work Order Metrics 
Preventive Maintenance (September) 
        
Total Work Orders Generated 369 
Total Work Orders Closed/Done 320 
Total Work Orders Still Open 49 
Percentage of Work Orders Completed 86% 

 
                                                                 Corrective Maintenance 
 

         
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        

   
 
       

 
 
         

91



 
 
 
FUNDING-N/A- Informational item only 

92



Resolutions

93



STAFF REPORT 
 
To:                 Board of Directors 

 
From:            Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 

 
Date:             October 26, 2023 

 
Subject:        Pescadero Creek Area Pipe Relocation
  Project#21-05 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve a resolution authorizing the 
General Manager to enter into a contract amendment with MNS Engineers, Inc. (MNS) to 
provide design services for the Pescadero Creek Area Pipe Relocation project in the 
amount of $298,884, including geotechnical analyses, environmental permitting and public 
outreach support. 

 
DISCUSSION 
 
The sewer main in this area is located in backyard easements above Pescadero Creek and 
has been in service for over 100 years. The vitrified clay pipe sewer main has been 
damaged in the past by tree falls, has limited access for District vehicles due to slope 
stability issues along the access road, and is in poor condition.  This pipeline is within 200 
feet of the creek and its replacement is in compliance with the agreement with River 
Watch. 
 
In 2016, MNS prepared a Draft Preliminary Engineering Report and Denise Duffy & 
Associates provided an environmental constraints analysis for each of the options to 
replace the pipeline, but the document was not finalized.  The option to redirect the 
pipeline in the Pescadero Road right-of-way is the best long-term solution to protect the 
sewer from slope stability issues and prevent damage to the environment.   
 
 
In late 2021, the Carmel Area Wastewater District (District) authorized a contract with 
MNS Engineers, Inc. for $202,921 under resolution 2021-53 to finalize the Preliminary 
Engineering Report (2016) and complete the engineering design of the pipeline 
replacement.  This included an anticipated Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration for 
environmental permitting, coastal development permitting and development of a public 
participation plan.   It was anticipated that the District would need to do a higher level of 
public outreach due to the potential need to place homes on pumped lateral connections. 

  

94



On July 28, 2022, the Board approved resolution 2022-50 for an amendment to the MNS 
Contract for $44,478 to perform a potholing investigation to confirm locations of utilities 
within the proposed new alignment of the pipeline in Pescadero Road and determine 
whether this option was feasible. 
 
During the potholing investigation,  members of the public expressed their opposition to 
the project and threatened litigation. The  District Board included a site walk of the existing 
pipeline alignment in their December 8, 2022 Board Meeting agenda. Residents of the 
Pescadero Road area participated in the site walk and were able to provide public 
comment once the Board Meeting reconvened at the Board Chambers. 
 
Since that time, staff have discussed the next steps with legal counsel and due to public 
concerns it is recommended that the level of environmental review be elevated to an 
Environmental Impact Report.  This requires MNS to provide three to four  alternative 
sewer alignments that will be reviewed by the environmental consultant, Denise Duffy & 
Associates for compliance with permitting requirements.  MNS has provided the attached 
proposal (dated October 3, 2023) for the work for an additional $298,884 resulting in a total 
contract amount of $546,283. 
 
 FUNDING 
The project was included in the 2023/2024 budget in the amount of $ 500,000.  Funding 
in 2024/2025 budget in the amount of $3M. 
 
 
Attachment:  MNS Amendment #2 Proposal 

Resolution 2023-58 

95



811 El Capitan Way, Suite 130  | San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 

805.692.6921 OFFICE    

mnsengineers.com 

October 3, 2023 

Carmel Area Wastewater District 

Attention: Ms. Rachél Lather, M.S., P.E., Principal Engineer 

3945 Rio Road 

Carmel-By-The-Sea CA 93923 

SUBJECT: Pescadero Road Sewer Main Replacement Project – Amendment No. 2 – Additional 
Services  

Dear Ms. Lather,   

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this amendment Pescadero Road Sewer Main Replacement 

Project (Project) for the Carmel Area Wastewater District (District). The District has determined that an 

Environmental Impact Report (EIR) will be pursued to provide more robust documentation of 

compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) process. In addition, increased 

budget is required to provide ongoing support services including private sewer pump station and 

lateral design, and to update the Preliminary Engineering Report to include a third approach of 

keeping a portion of the existing main in service, which was not previously considered.  

Project Understanding 
MNS is currently developing design documents for the replacement and relocation of approximately 

2,400 linear feet (LF) of existing gravity sewer main in Pescadero Road. The current, planned design 

approach. assumes the existing main will be abandoned to the point feasible and the rest will remain 

in service to the point necessary to continue to provide service to homes opting out of the new 

service.  

MNS will prepare a revised Final Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) to cover the current direction 

of the Project. 

Our subconsultant, Denise Duffy & Associates, Inc. (DD&A), will prepare the EIR for the Project. For 

development of the EIR, additional supporting documents are required to satisfy CEQA. These 

additional documents include: 

• Draft and Final Project Description 

• Notice of Preparation 

• Air quality and greenhouse gas emissions analysis  

• Odor analysis 

• Updated Biological resources study 

• Cultural and tribal resources study (including AB 52 consultation) 

• Noise assessment 

Updates to the contract documents will be made based on the findings and requirements of the EIR.   

MNS DETAILS 

LEGAL NAME 

MNS Engineers, Inc. 

FIRM OWNERSHIP TYPE 

C-Corporation 

YEAR FIRM ESTABLISHED 

1962 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT 

OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

DIR No. 1000003564 

CORPORATE OFFICE 

201 N. Calle Cesar Chavez,  

Suite 300 

Santa Barbara, CA 93103 

805.692.6921 Office/Fax 

mnsengineers.com 

LOCAL OFFICE 

811 El Capitan Way, Suite 130 

San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 

(805) 692-6921 

PROJECT CONTACT/ 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 

Nick Panofsky, PE 

Vice President – Water 
Resources 

(805) 592-2074 

Npanofsky@MNSengineers.com 

 

96



CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 

PESCADERO ROAD SEWER MAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT   

P A G E  2 

Scope of Work 
Due to the changes in the scope of the Project, additional project management, permitting support, environmental compliance 

support, and additional as-needed services will be required. MNS proposes to facilitate additional support services under Tasks 1, 2, 

7, and 8, as described below. 

Task 1 – Project Management, QA/QC, and Meetings  

This task includes Project Management, QA/QC, and meetings associated with the Project. 

1.1 – Project Management 

The Project Manager, Nick Panofsky, PE, will continue to provide ongoing coordination of the Project team including the District, 

subconsultants, and the internal project team during design of the Project. He will also monitor the budget and serve as the main 

point of contact with the District during Project design.  

The MNS Project Manager will be responsible for ensuring all deliverable deadlines are met, all internal quality control reviews are 

completed, and the final products meet the expectations of the District.   

1.2 – Quality Assurance/Quality Control  

In accordance with MNS company policy, all deliverables, calculations, recommendations, and other documentation will be reviewed 

by an experienced engineer, not otherwise associated with the Project, prior to submittal to the District. Documents will be reviewed 

to ensure technical excellence, the goals and expectations of the District are being met, and conformance with applicable design 

checklists and standards. For the Project, all deliverables and other items requiring quality control reviews will be reviewed by Tyler 

Hunt, PE, Lead Engineer.   

Task 2 – Update Preliminary Engineering Report  

MNS will revise and update the Final PER based on comments from the District, current District standards, and changes in the 

anticipated Project approach. The PER will be submitted as a Final Draft, for District review. Following receipt of District comments, 

the PER will be revised to Final. The Final PER will be stamped and signed by a licensed civil engineer, registered in California.  

Deliverables: Revised Final PER 

Task 7 – Environmental Permitting Support  

Our subconsultant, DD&A, will continue to provide environmental permitting and environmental support for the Project. A detailed 

amendment request for DD&A’s services is provided as an attachment, and includes additional project management, additional 

public outreach and coordination required by CEQA procedures, technical studies, and preparation of an EIR. MNS will support as 

needed and coordinate DD&A’s work.  

Deliverables: Revised IS-MND, Revised Biological Resources Report, Draft and Final Project Description, Draft Technical 

Studies, Draft and Final EIR 

Task 8 – Additional As-Needed Services  

At the request of the District, a budget has been established to provide additional professional services in support of the Project on 

an as-needed basis. Budget associated with this task will not be utilized without authorization from the District. This work may 

include design of grinder pump stations and associated infrastructure on private properties, meetings with the public, and other as-

97



CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 

PESCADERO ROAD SEWER MAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT   

P A G E  3 

needed services. We have budgeted to provide 40 hours for a Principal Engineer, and 60 hours for a Project Engineer to support this 

work. Work will be completed on a mutually agreeable schedule. 

Compensation 
MNS proposes to perform the additional base services described herein for a not-to-exceed fee estimate of $298,884. A detailed fee 

proposal spreadsheet is provided as an attachment. All fees are in accordance with the MNS Standard Fee Schedule, also provided 

as an attachment.  

Closing 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit this amendment proposal. We are excited and look forward to continuing to work with the 

District. Please feel free to contact me with any questions you may have at 805.592.2074 or npanofsky@mnsengineers.com. Thank 

you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

MNS Engineers, Inc. 

 

Nick Panofsky, PE 

Vice President – Water Resources 

Attachments: MNS 2023 Rate Schedule, Detailed Fee Estimate, DD&A Proposal 

98



 

2 0 2 3  S T A N D A R D  S C H E D U L E  O F  F E E S  

PROJECT/PROGRAM MANAGEMENT 
Principal-In-Charge .............................. $325 
Senior Project/Program Manager ..... 310 
Project/Program Manager ................... 260 
Assistant Project/Program Manager 245 
Senior Project Coordinator .................. 185 
Project Coordinator ................................ 155 

 

ENGINEERING 
Principal Engineer ................................. $290 
Lead Engineer ........................................... 255 
Supervising Engineer ............................. 245 
Senior Project Engineer ........................ 225 
Project Engineer ...................................... 200 
Associate Engineer ................................. 180 
Assistant Engineer .................................. 165 

SURVEYING 
Principal Surveyor ................................. $265 
Lead Surveyor ........................................... 255 
Supervising Surveyor ............................. 220 
Senior Project Surveyor ........................ 200 
Project Surveyor ...................................... 175 
Associate Project Surveyor .................. 165 
Assistant Project Surveyor ................... 150 
Party Chief (PW) ....................................... 180 
Chainperson (PW) ................................... 150 
One-Person Survey Crew (PW) ........... 215 

TECHNICAL SUPPORT 
CADD Manager ...................................... $200 
Supervising Technician ......................... 170 
Senior Technician .................................... 160 
Engineering Technician ......................... 125 

 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 
Principal Construction Manager ...... $315 
Senior Construction Manager ............ 275 
Senior Resident Engineer ..................... 250 
Resident Engineer ................................... 240 
Structure Representative ...................... 235 
Construction Manager .......................... 220 
Assistant Resident Engineer ................ 200 
Sr. Construction Inspector (PW)  ....... 175 
Construction Inspector (PW)  ............. 168 
Office Administrator .............................. 130  

PLANNING 
Planning Director .................................. $225 
City Planner/Planning Manager ......... 210 
Principal Planner ...................................... 195 
Senior Planner .......................................... 180 
Associate Planner .................................... 150 
Assistant Planner ..................................... 130 
Planning Technician ............................... 110 

ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT 
Senior Management Analyst ............ $185 
Management Analyst ............................ 155 
IT Technician ............................................. 140 
Graphics/Visualization Specialist ....... 150 
Administrative Assistant ....................... 100 

 
GOVERNMENT SERVICES 
City Engineer .......................................... $250 
Deputy City Engineer ............................. 225 
Assistant City Engineer ......................... 215 
Plan Check Engineer .............................. 190 
Permit Engineer ....................................... 185 
City Inspector ........................................... 185 
Senior City Inspector (PW)  ................. 195 
City Inspector (PW) ................................. 185 
Principal Stormwater Specialist ......... 180 
Senior Stormwater Specialist .............. 170 
Stormwater Specialist ............................ 160 
Stormwater Technician ......................... 140 
Building Official ....................................... 220 
Senior Building Inspector ..................... 235 
Building Inspector ................................... 165 
Senior Grant Writer ................................ 180 
Grant Writer .............................................. 170 
Associate Grant Writer .......................... 150 
Assistant Grant Writer ........................... 130 

DIRECT EXPENSES 
Use of outside consultants as well as copies, blueprints, survey stakes, monuments, computer plots, telephone, travel (out of area) and all similar charges 
directly connected with the work will be charged at cost plus fifteen percent (15%). Mileage will be charged at the current federal mileage reimbursement rate.  

PREVAILING WAGE RATES 
Rates shown with Prevailing Wage “(PW)” annotation are used for field work on projects subject to federal or state prevailing wage law and are subject to 
increases per DIR. 

ANNUAL ESCALATION 
Standard fee rates provided for each classification are subject to 3.5% annual escalation or the most recent US Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Price 
Index, whichever is higher. 

OVERTIME 
Overtime for non-exempt employees will be charged at 1.5 x hourly rate; overtime for exempt employees and other classification will be charged  
at 1 x hourly rate. 

99



100



 
September 29, 2023 
 
Nick Panofsky, PE 
Principal Engineer/Business Unit Lead 
201 N. Calle Cesar Chavez, Suite 300 
Santa Barbara, CA 93103 
 
RE: Proposal to Provide Environmental Services – Pescadero Road Sewer Replacement Project  
 
Dear Nick, 
 
At the request of the Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) and as a subconsultant to MNS Engineers, 
Inc. (MNS), Denise Duffy & Associates, Inc. (DD&A) is pleased to submit this proposal to provide 
environmental services for the Pescadero Road Sewer Replacement Project (proposed project).  
  
DD&A understands that the proposed project is subject to the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) and CAWD has determined that an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) is the appropriate level of 
documentation required to comply with CEQA. The following proposal identifies the tasks required 
to complete the EIR process for the proposed project. This scope of work would replace the tasks 
outlined in the approved contract, and would require an additional $205,856. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK 
 
Task 1. Public Outreach 
 
Public outreach and early coordination with interested parties will be an important part of achieving the 
goals and objectives of the project. In coordination with the project team, DD&A will prepare a 
mailing/email list of stakeholders. This contact database will be used and updated, as needed, throughout 
the duration of the project. DD&A will prepare a Public Participation Plan to outline a process to solicit 
public input regarding the proposed project. DD&A will prepare a draft Plan, which will contain a detailed 
description of project milestones and information predicted to be relevant in responding to adjacent 
landowner concerns and questions. The Plan will identify outreach strategies for the key stakeholders. It 
will outline the public outreach methods that may be considered, including potential meeting types (i.e., 
site visits/field visits, workshops, small group, one-on-one), periodic project updates for the public, and a 
project website. It will also include outreach methods for low-income and minority populations, including 
multi-lingual noticing and translators at public meetings. DD&A will submit a Draft Public Participation 
Plan for review and comment. Upon receipt of comments, DD&A will revise accordingly and finalize the 
plan. This scope of work assumes two presentations/community meetings. 
 
This scope of work assumes DD&A will facilitate the meetings and provide all necessary meeting materials, 
including, but not limited to, agendas, meeting notes, PowerPoint presentations, etc. DD&A will submit 
drafts of all meeting materials to the project team, as determined necessary, for review and comment prior 
to public meeting distribution. DD&A will engage with adjacent landowners on an on-going basis as needed 
to respond to questions/comments and solicitations for information relative to the new sewer connection 
and pump on their property.  

101



The scale and schedule for this process is unknown at this time. DD&A assumes 94 staff hours for this 
effort. If additional time is required to meet the goals and objectives of this task, a contract amendment may 
be necessary. 
 
Deliverable(s): Draft Contact Database, Draft and Final Public Participation Plan, Draft and Final 
Meeting Materials  
 
Task 2.  Draft and Final Project Description  
 
DD&A will prepare a Draft Project Description defining all aspects of the project, including, but not limited 
to, project background, location, goals and objectives, planning and engineering details, limits of 
construction, affected properties and phasing (if any), construction schedule and equipment, graphics to 
illustrate the project plans, and anticipated permitting and approval actions. This scope of work assumes 
site plans and drawings will be provided by the project team. DD&A will submit a Draft Project Description 
electronically to the project team for review and comment. Based on comments received, DD&A will 
finalize the Project Description for inclusion in the IS/MND and technical studies. This scope of work 
assumes one round of comments on the Draft Project Description. 
 
Deliverable(s): Draft and Final Project Description  
  
Task 3. Prepare Notice of Preparation & Participate in Scoping Meeting 
 
DD&A would prepare the Notice of Preparation (NOP) for the proposed project in accordance with CEQA 
and CAWD procedures. The NOP will be electronically submitted in draft form to CAWD, MNS, and other 
members of the project team, as appropriate, for review and comment prior to public distribution. The NOP 
will include a brief project description (including figures) and identification of potential environmental 
impacts in accordance with CEQA Guidelines §15082. In addition, DD&A will prepare drafts of the 
required notices for review and comment (i.e., Notice of Completion and Summary Form for State 
Clearinghouse submission). Upon receipt of comments, DD&A will revise the NOP and notices, and 
electronically submit a final version to CAWD for distribution. This task assumes that CAWD will be 
responsible for distribution and noticing. The NOP would circulate for a review period of not less than 30-
days. 
 
During the course of the 30-day NOP public comment period (see CEQA Guidelines §15082 and §15375), 
DD&A will attend and participate in one (1) public scoping meeting. This task will include the preparation 
of presentation materials, including a PowerPoint presentation, agenda, comment cards, and other materials 
that may be required. DD&A will be responsible for providing a brief presentation on the nature of the 
scoping meeting and the general requirements of CEQA, including an overview of the environmental 
process and anticipated project impacts. All comments received at the scoping meeting and during the NOP 
comment period will be used to determine the appropriate scope of environmental analysis contained in the 
EIR. This task assumes CAWD and MNS will be present at the scoping meeting to facilitate and participate 
in presenting information about the proposed project. 
 
After the conclusion of the NOP public comment period, a summary of the scoping meeting comments 
would be prepared by DD&A and provided to CAWD, MNS, and other members of the project team, as 
appropriate. The summary of comments will be presented in table format, listing the environmental topics 
and issues specified in each comment letter. Comments on technical issue areas would also be forwarded 
to the technical consultants for their analyses of identified environmental concerns.  
 
Deliverable(s): Draft and Final NOP and required Notices, Draft and Final Scoping Meeting Materials, 
Draft and Final Summary of Public Comments  

102



Task 4. Early Coordination with Responsible and Interested Agencies 
 
DD&A, in collaboration with the project team, will contact and coordinate with responsible and interested 
agencies, as determined necessary, to determine timeframes and requirements for obtaining the appropriate 
permits and approvals for the proposed project. Responsible and interested agencies are those that have 
knowledge of affected resources, jurisdiction over the project, or will be affected by the project. Early 
coordination ensures that potential environmental issues are adequately addressed as part of the 
environmental review process. It is anticipated DD&A and the project team will contact and/or meet with 
representatives of the following agencies: 
  
 County of Monterey 
 City of Carmel-by-the-Sea 
 Pebble Beach Community Services District  
 California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) 
 U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) 
 Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) 
 U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (ACOE) 
 Ohlone Costanoan Esselen Nation (OCEN) and other Native American Tribes (including AB 52 

Tribal Consultation Notification) 
 Monterey Bay Air Resources District (MBARD) 
 Adjacent landowners 

 
This scope of work includes the attendance of DD&A’s Project Manager at four (4) agency/interested party 
meetings (virtual or in person). It is assumed that CAWD will be responsible for organizing the meetings 
and conference calls.   
 
Deliverable(s): Draft and Final Meeting Materials 
 
Task 5. Prepare Technical Studies 
 
Based on our preliminary review of the proposed project, it is anticipated that the following technical studies 
will be required for the environmental analysis: air quality and greenhouse gas emissions analysis, odor 
analysis, biological resources study, cultural and tribal resources study (including AB 52 consultation), and 
noise assessment. DD&A will retain AMBIENT to prepare the Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
Impact Assessment and the Noise & Groundborne Vibration Impact Assessment and Albion to complete 
the cultural and tribal resources study and AB 52 consultation. DD&A’s NRD will conduct the biological 
resources study. V&A Consulting Engineers, Inc. (V&A) will be retained for the odor analysis. It is 
anticipated that the scope of these studies will include the following:   
  

• Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions Analysis: AMBIENT will describe regional 
air quality and local air quality in the vicinity of the project site. Meteorological conditions in the 
vicinity of the project site that could affect air pollutant dispersal or transport will be described, if 
needed. However, field monitoring of meteorology and pollutant emissions is not included. The 
local topographic effects on pollutant dispersal will be discussed. Applicable air quality regulatory 
framework, standards, and significance thresholds will be discussed. 

 
Short-term construction and long-term operational emissions of criteria air pollutants and GHGs 
will be quantitatively assessed using the CalEEMod computer program. Emissions modeling will 
be conducted based on project-specific construction information to be provided. Construction 
emissions will be quantified based on project construction information (e.g., equipment use, 
schedules) to be provided. Operational emissions are anticipated to be negligible and will be 

103



qualitatively discussed. Localized air pollutant impacts, including odors, are anticipated to be 
negligible and will be qualitatively discussed. The preparation of health risk assessments and 
dispersion modeling are not anticipated to be required and are not included. An analysis of pump 
stations is not anticipated to be required for this project and is not included. 

 
The significance of air quality impacts will be determined in comparison to applicable significance 
thresholds. Mitigation measures will be included for significant impacts. To the extent possible, the 
effectiveness of proposed mitigation measures will be quantified and discussed. Consistency with 
applicable air quality and GHG plans will be discussed. 
 

• Update Biological Resources Report: DD&A biologists will update the biological resources 
report for the preferred alignment at 60% design.  

 
• Cultural/Tribal Resources: Albion will conduct a conduct a Phase I cultural resource inventory 

for the proposed project, which will include: 
 
 A review of existing archaeological records located at the Northwest Information Center at 

Sonoma State University (NWIC) 
 Pedestrian survey of the proposed project site  
 Recording of any archaeological resources found during the survey 
 A report of findings and recommendations for CAWD 
 AB 52 Tribal Consultation. 

 
If the tribe(s) request consultation, DD&A and Albion will assist CAWD in the consultation process 
in accordance with the requirements of AB 52. 

 
• Noise and Groundborne Vibration: The noise impact analysis provided by AMBIENT will 

include a description of the existing noise environment, including nearby noise sources and noise-
sensitive receptors, based on existing environmental documentation and a review of site 
reconnaissance data. Relevant background information, including noise fundamentals, descriptors, 
and applicable federal, state, and local regulatory framework, will be described.  

 
To assess potential construction noise impacts, sensitive receptors and their relative exposure to the 
proposed project area (considering topographic barriers and distance) will be identified. Noise 
levels of specific construction equipment will be determined and resultant noise levels at nearby 
receptors (at given distances from the source) will be calculated. Long-term noise and groundborne 
vibration impacts are anticipated to be negligible and will be qualitatively discussed. 
 
In the event that operational noise data for grinder sump pumps is available from the manufacturer, 
operational noise levels for sump pumps will be quantified and discussed. An analysis of pump 
stations is not anticipated to be required for this project and is not included. 
 
Groundborne vibration levels associated with proposed development are anticipated to be 
predominantly associated with construction activities. Groundborne vibration levels commonly 
associated with construction equipment and associated significance thresholds for structural 
damage and human annoyance will be identified and discussed. 
 
The significance of noise and groundborne vibration impacts will be determined in comparison to 
applicable standards. Mitigation measures will be identified for potentially significant impacts. The 
effectiveness of proposed mitigation measures will be evaluated and discussed. 
 

104



• Odor Analysis: V&A will evaluate odor conditions in the existing sewer, offer an opinion of 
potential odor impacts from the project, and assess mitigation alternatives for such impacts.  
 
V&A staff will conduct a one-day site visit to observe the odor conditions along Pescadero Road. 
During the field investigation, samples will be collected to characterize the odor conditions at the 
upstream and downstream ends of the project sewer. Continuous hydrogen sulfide monitoring and 
differential pressure monitoring will be conducted for a period of one week to characterize the 
potential for odor emissions at the upstream and downstream locations. Additional samples will be 
collected at the end of the one-week monitoring period. 
Current odor conditions and likely changes in odor impacts from the proposed project would be 
identified based on the results of the background review and field investigation. If the evaluation 
reveals a likelihood of odor impact, treatment alternatives (including liquid and vapor phase 
treatment) will be evaluated and design/performance criteria will be recommended to meet the odor 
control goals and provide budgetary equipment and life cycle costs. The summary of the results of 
the field investigation and odor control evaluation will be in the form of a Technical Memorandum 
(TM). 

 
An administrative draft of each of the technical studies will be provided in electronic format with the 
submittal of the Administrative Draft IS/MND (Task 6).  
 
Deliverable(s): Administrative Draft Technical Studies 
 
Task 6. Prepare Administrative Draft EIR 
 
DD&A will prepare an Administrative Draft EIR for the proposed project, in accordance with CEQA 
requirements. The Administrative Draft EIR will include a complete, thorough, accurate, and objective 
analysis of all relevant topics. The topics expected to be addressed, a description of the analyses to be 
conducted, and the contents of those sections are discussed below. In addition, the significance of the 
impacts after implementation of the mitigation measures will be included in the analysis. Impacts 
considered would include the following: direct, indirect, construction/short-term, operational/long-term, 
growth inducing, and cumulative. The Administrative Draft EIR will identify and summarize significant 
impacts and whether they can or cannot be avoided, and will also identify any beneficial environmental 
impacts of the project, if any. The format of the document will be consistent with the format and outline 
already determined earlier in the EIR process, but will include all topics discussed below.   

 
DD&A would submit an electronic copy of the Administrative Draft EIR to the project team for review and 
comment. The proposed Administrative Draft EIR would contain the following mandated sections: 

 
A. Executive Summary. The executive summary section would be included in the EIR to 

briefly describe the proposed project and to provide a summary of all potential impacts and 
recommended mitigation measures identified in the EIR. The summary would also identify 
areas of controversy and project alternatives evaluated in the EIR and identify any growth 
inducing effects of the project.  
 

B. Project Description. The EIR would provide a detailed description of the proposed project 
based on information provided by the project team and completed during Task 1 above. 

 
C. Environmental Setting, Impacts, and Mitigation. The Administrative Draft EIR will 

address all issue areas identified in the most current version of the CEQA Guidelines 
Appendix G Environmental Checklist Form (2023). The topics proposed for focused 
analysis in the EIR are anticipated to include, but are not limited to, aesthetics, 

105



geology/soils, hydrology/water quality, air quality/odor, greenhouse gas emissions, energy, 
biological resources, cultural and tribal resources, land use and planning, transportation, 
hazardous materials, utilities and service systems, public services, recreation, and noise. 
For each environmental topic, the EIR would include a discussion of existing conditions 
and would identify potential environmental impacts of the proposed project using 
significance criteria (i.e., thresholds of significance) to determine the level of impact for 
each identified issue. The project impact section would present potentially significant 
impacts, and identify mitigation which avoids or reduces impacts to a less-than-significant 
level where feasible. 
 

D. Cumulative Impacts. In accordance with CEQA requirements, the EIR would analyze 
potentially significant cumulative impacts anticipated from development of the proposed 
project combined with past, present, and reasonably foreseeable future projects in the 
project vicinity. The analysis would be based on a list of proposed or anticipated projects 
in the area, which would be developed by the project team. 
 

E. Alternatives to the Proposed Project. In accordance with CEQA, the EIR would need to 
address a reasonable range of alternatives to the proposed project that could feasibly meet 
the project objectives and potentially avoid or lessen any new significant environmental 
impacts associated with the project. DD&A would consult with CAWD and MNS to 
identify feasible alternatives. All alternatives would be discussed both quantitatively and 
qualitatively in terms of their impacts and their effectiveness in addressing identified 
significant adverse project impacts. This section would identify and discuss the alternative 
deemed to be environmentally superior pursuant to the requirements of CEQA 
§15126.6(e)(2). This evaluation would be based on a comparative analysis of the 
recommended alternatives. 
 

F. Graphics. Prepare appropriate graphics and tables to present the environmental analysis. 
 

G. References/List of Preparers. Identify all sources used as a reference in the EIR, as well as 
a listing of all persons involved in the preparation or otherwise contacted during the 
preparation of the document. 
 

H. Other CEQA-Required Sections. The major environmental issues to be addressed in the 
EIR are described above. In addition to these and the remaining CEQA checklist 
environmental topics, the EIR would include other CEQA-required sections, as follows: 
Growth-Inducing Impacts, Significant Unavoidable Impacts, Irreversible Effects, EIR 
Authors & Consultants. 

 
Deliverable(s): Administrative Draft EIR 
 
Task 7. Prepare Screencheck Draft EIR 
 
DD&A will revise the Administrative Draft EIR based on comments received from the project team. This 
scope assumes no more than one (1) round of comments. DD&A will provide an electronic copy of the 
Screencheck Draft EIR to the project team for final review before publication. This scope of work assumes 
minimal and minor edits will be required.  
 
As part of this task, DD&A will prepare the draft notices required for public circulation, including the 
Notice of Intent (NOI) for posting and distribution, and the Notice of Completion (NOC) and Summary 

106



Form for the State Clearinghouse (SCH). DD&A will coordinate with CAWD to develop the draft 
distribution list. 
 
Deliverable(s): Screencheck Draft EIR and Draft Notices 
 
Task 8. Prepare Public Draft EIR 
 
Upon final review and authorization of the document by CAWD, DD&A will provide an electronic copy 
of the Public Draft EIR and notices to CAWD. This scope assumes that CAWD will be responsible for 
coordinating the distribution and publication of the Public Draft EIR as the CEQA Lead Agency. DD&A 
will work with CAWD to upload the Public Draft EIR and notices to the State Clearinghouse’s “CEQA 
Submit” system, in fulfillment of CEQA requirements for State-level review.1 DD&A will assist CAWD 
in noticing the availability of the Public Draft EIR in accordance with CEQA Guidelines. DD&A will file 
the NOI with the Monterey County Clerk’s Office on behalf of CAWD. This scope of work includes the 
publication of one (1) hardcopy of the Public Draft EIR for public viewing, available at the CAWD office. 
 
Deliverable(s): Public Draft EIR (electronically in MS Word and Adobe pdf formats), Final Notices, One 
(1) Hardcopy of Public Draft EIR 
 
Task 9. Prepare Final EIR & Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
 
Following the conclusion of the 45-day review period for the Public Draft EIR, DD&A will assist CAWD 
staff with responding to public comments. DD&A will prepare a Draft Final EIR containing all public 
comments received and responses to each comment that raises a substantive environmental issue. In 
addition, the Final EIR will contain a section showing text edits to the Public Draft EIR in response to 
comments received, as appropriate. This scope anticipates a significant number of public comments will be 
received and that two (2) rounds of comments from the project team will be necessary.  

 
As part of this task, DD&A will prepare a Draft Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP). 
Mitigation measures recommended for those impacts, as identified in the Draft EIR would be summarized 
in the MMRP, along with responsibility for implementation, timing of implementation, and oversight 
responsibility.  
 
Based upon receipt of comments, DD&A will prepare and electronically submit the Final EIR and MMRP 
to the project team. This scope of work includes the production of one (1) hardcopy of the Final EIR and 
MMRP. 
 
Deliverable(s): Draft Final EIR and MMRP, Final EIR and MMRP (electronically in MS Word and Adobe 
pdf formats), One (1) Hardcopy of Final EIR and MMRP 

 
Task 10. Board Meeting and Additional Meeting Attendance  
 
DD&A will assist the CAWD in preparing the necessary items for the Board of Directors’ (Board) 
consideration of the proposed project and EIR. As part of this task, DD&A will prepare a draft staff report 
and resolution that summarizes the proposed project, describing the environmental documentation, and 
summarizing the proposed action to be taken under consideration by the Board. DD&A will provide the 
draft staff report and resolution to CAWD for review and comments. DD&A will also provide Draft CEQA 
Findings. DD&A will then revise and finalize the staff report and resolution and CEQA Findings for the 

1 This process will be conducted in lieu of producing hard copies for State-level review of the Draft CEQA document 
as required by the Office of Planning and Research (OPR). 

107



board meeting. DD&A will assist CAWD with presenting the proposed project at the board meeting, if 
requested. 

 
DD&A is available to attend meetings upon request, including internal coordination calls. This scope 
assumes a maximum of two (2) monthly meetings, starting in November 2023 and lasting through October 
2024, plus an additional five (5) technical meetings on topical issues. Additional meetings will be billed on 
a T&M basis upon approval by CAWD.  
 
Deliverable(s): Draft and Final Meeting and Board Meeting Materials  
 
SCHEDULE 
 
DD&A estimates that the environmental review process for the proposed project will require 12-16 months 
to complete. A detailed schedule will be prepared upon authorization to proceed. 
 
BUDGET 
 
The budget for completion of the environmental review for the proposed project based on the tasks 
described above would not exceed $239,304. DD&A is contracted to provide environmental services for 
the proposed project for a cost of $42,248. To date, DD&A has provided environmental services totaling a 
cost of $8,800, and there is $33,448 remaining on the contract. Therefore, the completion of the tasks above 
would require an additional $205,856. The budget would be billed on a fixed fee basis, as itemized on the 
attached spreadsheet.  
 
We look forward to continuing to work with MNS and CAWD on the proposed project. Please do not 
hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or require additional information.  
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Erin Harwayne, AICP, Project Manager 
DENISE DUFFY & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
(831)373-4341x19 
eharwayne@ddaplanning.com  

108

mailto:eharwayne@ddaplanning.com


Task

Pr
in

ci
pa

l

Pr
in

ci
pa

l P
la

nn
er

Sr
. P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er

Se
ni

or
 S

ci
en

tis
t 

or
 

Pl
an

ne
r

A
ss

oc
ia

te
 S

ci
en

tis
t 

or
 P

la
nn

er

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 S

ci
en

tis
t 

or
 

Pl
an

ne
r

G
IS

/C
om

pu
te

r 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

an
d 

Ed
iti

ng

Hours 
Per 

Task
Subtotal Cost Per Task

1 Public Outreach 2 8 32 4 20 8 12 8 94                   13,688.00         
2 Draft and Final Project Description 1 2 4 2 10 20 6 4 49                   6,008.00           
3 Prepare Notice of Preparation & Participate in Scoping Meeting 1 4 8 6 8 20 4 8 59                   7,528.00           
4 Early Coordination with Responsible and Interested Agencies 1 4 10 6 12 20 4 4 61                   8,084.00           
5 Prepare Technical Studies 14,088.00         

5a Update Biological Resources Report (DD&A) 2 4 12 8 24 8 4 62                  7,656.00           

5b Review and Coordination 2 6 16 24 48                  6,432.00           

6 Prepare Administrative Draft EIR 2 22 48 64 88 142 40 16 422                 54,644.00         
7 Prepare Screencheck Draft EIR 4 16 24 32 48 16 10 150                 18,850.00         
8 Prepare Public Draft EIR 2 6 12 14 24 2 10 70                   8,494.00           
9 Prepare Final EIR & Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 4 10 18 20 32 40 8 16 148                 19,424.00         
10 Board Meeting and Additional Meeting Attendance 6 46 24 16 60 16 30 198                 25,510.00         

Total Hours 11                66                198             190             240             430              116                 110              1,361         

Hourly Rate $252.00 $190.00 $182.00 $148.00 $121.00 $108.00 $115.00 $73.00

Total Labor 2,772$        12,540$     36,036$     28,120$     29,040$     46,440$      13,340$         8,030$        176,318$          

Subconsultants: 55,680$              

AMBIENT (Air Quality, Greenhouse Gas Emissions, and Noise Studies) 12,600$      

Albion (Cultural Resources Report and AB 52 Compliance) 15,913$      

V&A (Odor Analysis) 27,167$      

Expenses: 1,580$                

Reproduction 550$           

Mileage (at current IRS mileage rate) 150$           

Miscellaneous (communication, GIS/Trimble, postage, courier etc) 880$           

Subtotal 57,260$            

Administration Fee (10%) 5,726$              

Total Budget 239,304$          
(1)

(2) Assumes a limited amount of comments received during public circulation.

DD&A is contracted to provide environmental services for the proposed project for a cost of $42,248. To date, DD&A has billed the environmental services provided to the existing contract for a total of $8,800.  This leaves a remaining balance of $33,448 on that 
contract. Therefore, the completion of the tasks above would require an additional $205,856.

DD&A, Inc. Cost Breakdown
for

Pescadero Road Sewer Replacement Project

109



RESOLUTION 2023-58 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
CONTRACT AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 WITH MNS ENGINEERS TO COMPLETE 

ENGINEERING AND AN ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE 
PESCADERO CREEK AREA PIPE RELOCATION PROJECT-#21-05 

 

  WHEREAS, the District approved the 2022/23 budget that included 
funding for the Pescadero Creek Area Pipe Relocation Project consulting work; 

WHEREAS, the District approved the 2023/24 budget that included $500,000 in 
funding for the Pescadero Creek Area Pipe Relocation Project; 

  WHEREAS, the District approved a contract with MNS Engineers for 
professional engineering services to provide engineering services for the Pescadero 
Creek Area Pipe Relocation Project in the amount of $202,921; and 

  WHEREAS, the District approved a contract  amendment number 1 with 
MNS Engineers for professional engineering services to pothole the location of utilities 
within Pescadero Road for $44,478; and 

  WHEREAS, in order to proceed with the design and environmental 
review of the project  the District needs additional services from MNS Engineers for the 
project as summarized in their proposal dated October 3, 2023  for increasing the 
alignment options and completing an Environmental Impact Report for the project. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of 
Carmel Area Wastewater District, hereby authorizes the General Manager to amend the  
contract with MNS Engineers to provide geotechnical analyses, environmental 
permitting, public outreach, utility potholing and redesign services for the relocation of 
the Pescadero road sewer main in the amount of $ 298,884 for a total not to exceed 
contract amount of $546,283. 

  PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors 
of the Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on October 26, 2023. 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 
NOES: BOARD MEMBERS: 
ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS: 

______________________________ 
       Ken White, President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
____________________________________ 
Domine Barriner, Secretary to the Board 

110



STAFF REPORT 
 
To:                  Board of Directors 
 

From:             Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 

Date:  October 26, 2023 
 

Subject:          Retired Annuitant Position 
   
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve Resolution 2023-59 to allow the Principal Engineer, Rachél Lather to work 
part-time (up to 960 hours) as a retired annuitant prior to the 180-day wait period 
requirement by CALPERS due to the critical need for her expertise for the existing 
projects related to sewer extensions and assessment district formations. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer, has notified the General Manager of her intent to retire at 
the end of December 2023.  A replacement for her position has not been found and it is 
highly unlikely that we will find one with her experience and expertise in assessment 
district formation or sewer extension requirements. Much of her project work includes the 
work required to form and construct sewer assessment districts and private sewer extension 
projects.  This report is provided to request that the Board of the Carmel Area Wastewater 
District (CAWD/District) take action to appoint Rachel Lather to work part-time as the 
Principal Engineer after retirement due to her critically needed knowledge of and skills 
with assessment district formations and sewer extension engineering.   
 
According to Cal Pers Retired Annuitant Rules, a retiree cannot be employed as a retired 
annuitant for a period of 180 days after the retirement date, unless they qualify for an 
exception. The following exception applies to Rachél Lather: 
 

• Before you begin work, your employer must certify the nature of the employment and that 
the appointment is necessary to fill a critically needed position sooner than 180 days. The 
appointment must be approved by the employer’s governing body, in a public meeting, and 
must be approved as an action item, rather than on a consent calendar. 

 
There are five projects that are in various stages of completion that are critical for the 
District  to have a knowledgeable and experienced Principal Engineer manage on their 
behalf. 
 
 

  

111



 
Carmel Valley Manor Sewer Extension 
Carmel Valley Manor (CVM) has proceeded with construction of the sewer line in Carmel 
Valley Road and will continue work on this critical project after January 1, 2024.  Currently, 
the sewer line from Carmel Valley Manor to Valley Greens has been tested and Monterey 
Peninsula Engineering (MPE) will complete paving Carmel Valley Road prior to the 
September Board Meeting.  Work is also being completed within Valley Greens Drive to 
install electrical conduits, relocate a water line, and install the force main from the new 
pump station.     
 
Work regarding the completion of the project construction will include final acceptance of 
the project construction by the Principal Engineer and the Board, final development and 
approval of the reimbursement agreement, as-built easement and construction approval 
and acceptance of the sewer system into the District.  Because the Principal Engineer has 
been working on this project for the past 5 years and has the knowledge and experience to 
complete the remaining work, it is critical for her to be able to work part-time to complete 
the project. 
 
September Ranch Sewer Extension 
September Ranch have commenced preparations for construction of the sewer extension 
for their development project.  Construction has not started and when it does MNS 
Engineers will be providing inspection services on behalf of the District.  Because the 
Principal Engineer has been working on this project for the past 5 years and has the 
knowledge and experience to complete the remaining work, it is critical for her to be able to 
work part-time to complete the project. 
 
Rancho Cañada Village Sewer Extension 
Rancho Cañada Village developer is moving forward with the project in the near future.  
They will need a sewer extension agreement from the District and to hire a construction 
manager/inspector to represent the District. It is anticipated that the sewer extension 
agreement and construction inspection contract will come to the Board for approval in 
December 2023. Because the Principal Engineer has been working on this project for the 
past 5 years and has the knowledge and experience to complete the remaining work, it is 
critical for her to be able to work part-time to complete the project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

112



Corona Road Sewer Extension and Assessment District 
The Corona Road Sewer System Assessment District formation will be reviewed by the 
Board at this meeting (October 2023).  Ms. Lather has completed the annexation process, 
the community outreach and the studies needed to proceed with formation of the 
assessment district.  If the Board moves forward with the formation process, a vote will be 
tabulated on December 12, 2023, and depending on the vote, there may be further work to 
be done with getting bonds for the project, coastal permits, final design documents, and 
other items.  Her knowledge and experience with this project are critically needed in order 
to complete it. 
 
Carmel Mid-Valley and Carmel Valley Road Corridor 
It is possible that a sewer extension will be pursued from the Carmel Mid-Valley Center to 
the new manhole at Carmel Valley Manor in Carmel Valley Road.  Several positive 
meetings have occurred with the Carmel Mid-Valley Center neighborhood to discuss a 
possible sewer extension.   
  
Finally, depending on our ability to recruit a new engineer, Ms. Lather would be available 
part time to assist the new candidate in the transition.   
 
FUNDING 
All work will be funded by the project developer or assessment district proceeds. 
 
 

113



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-59 
 

A RESOLUTION TO PERMIT RETIRED PRINCIPAL ENGINEER, RACHÉL 
LATHER, TO WORK PART TIME (UP TO 960 HOURS) AS A RETIRED ANNUITANT 

PRIOR TO THE 180 DAY WAIT PERIOD REQUIRED BY CALPERS DUE TO THE 
CRITICAL NEED FOR HER EXPERTISE FOR PROJECTS RELATED TO SEWER 

EXTENSIONS AND ASSESSMENT DISTRICT FORMATIONS 
 

-oOo- 
 

WHEREAS, the Principal Engineer, Rachél Lather, has notified the District of her 
intent to retire at the end of December 2023; and 

 
WHEREAS, a replacement for her position has not been found and although we 

are currently recruiting we believe we may not find an engineer with her experience and 
expertise with assessment district formation or sewer extension requirement; and 

 
WHEREAS, CalPERS Retired Annuitant Rules state that a retiree cannot be 

employed as a retired annuitant for a period of 180 days after the retirement date unless 
they qualify for an exception.  Rachél Lather qualifies if District certifies the nature of 
employment and that an appointment is necessary to fill a critically needed position 
sooner than 180 days; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the 

Board of the Carmel Area Wastewater District as follows: 
 
1. The current Principal Engineer is uniquely qualified to continue work on 

the assessment district formations and sewer extension projects already 
started at the District (i.e. Carmel Valley Manor Sewer Extension, 
September Ranch Sewer Extension, Rancho Canada Village Sewer 
Extension, Corona Road Sewer Extension & Assessment District, and 
Carmel Mid-Valley/Carmel Valley Road Corridor); and 
 

2. The District is currently recruiting for the Principal Engineer position, but 
until we are able to fill that position it leaves the District unable to continue 
work on existing projects; and 
 

3. In order to continue work on these projects, the District requires Ms. 
Lather’s expertise without interruption and prior to the 180 day standard 
waiting period. 

 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

114



 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on October 26, 2023 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   BOARD MEMBERS: 
NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 
ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

    
 _______________________________ 

    Ken  White, President of the Board 
 
ATTEST: 
____________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary of the Board 
 
 
 

115



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  October 26, 2023 
 
Subject: Renew Human Resources (HR) Contract  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution authorizing the General 
Manager to renew a Human Resource (HR) contract with Beth Ingram for fiscal year 2023-24 
in an amount not to exceed $71,660. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Ms. Ingram has provided HR services to the District for since 2018, and prior to that time 
she supplied services under CSR HR Group.  She is well liked by staff and takes on the 
burden of the great majority of routine HR tasks at the District.  She has also been 
instrumental in managing benefit contracts and ensuring that the District gets the best prices 
possible.  For items beyond “routine”  we will engage with legal counsel. 
 
The services provided by Ms. Ingram allow the District to reduce costs by reducing 
nonrevenue generating back-office expenses while granting the District access to a larger 
professional HR pool.   Further, HR outsourcing costs are variable and can be reduced or 
increased when business needs warrant. 
  
Staff recommends a renewed contract with Beth Ingram because she is well liked and 
received by employees and has seamlessly joined the CAWD “team”. We have worked with 
Ms. Ingram, and she understands the shared vision at CAWD and the emphasis that is 
placed on employee relations.   
 
The Salary/Benefits Committee reviewed this contract and agreed that a 5% increase was 
acceptable at its September 27, 2023 meeting. 
  
FINANCIAL 
 
The 2023-24 Budget provides $75,200 for “HR Consulting” expense under GL #5885. 

 
 

116

barringer
Highlight



RESOLUTION # 2023-60 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 

CONTRACT WITH BETH INGRAM FOR A CONTRACT FOR HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES  

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $71,660 

-oOo- 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors is convinced by the staff report presented at its regular 

board meeting October 26, 2023 that the District should continue to outsource its Human 

Resource function; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors agrees that it will provide greater service to 

employees, reduce risk, and lower costs if Human Resources is outsourced; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors agrees with the proposal to award the contract to Beth 

Ingram and that there are sufficient funds of $71,660 provided for in the budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area 

Wastewater District that the General Manager may sign a contract with Beth Ingram in an 

amount not to exceed $71,660 for Human Resource consulting services.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District duly held on October 26, 2023 by the following vote: 

 

AYES: BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES: BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

  

     _________________________________ 
     Ken White, President of the Board 
 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 
Domine Barriner, Secretary of the Board 

117



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 
 
Date:  October 26, 2023 
 
Subject: Project # 18-21 Corona Road Sewer System Project 
 Assessment District Formation 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 
 

1. Adopt the Resolution of Intention to Make Acquisitions and Improvements for the 
proposed Carmel Area Wastewater District Assessment District No. 23-01 (Corona 
Road Area Sanitary Sewer System Project).   

2. Adopt the Resolution Preliminarily Approving the Engineer’s Report and 
Directing Related Actions for the proposed Carmel Area Wastewater District 
Assessment District No. 23-01 (Corona Road Area Sanitary Sewer System Project).   
 

DISCUSSION  
 
The proposed project is located in the Carmel Highlands in Monterey County. The project 
involves the formation of a new assessment district and installation of a new sanitary 
sewer transmission pipeline and an associated pump station. The proposed project would 
extend sewer services to allow the future connection of up to 56 homes in the vicinity of 
Corona Road to the District’s wastewater treatment system. The project would include 
installation of a below grade sewage lift station and installation of a new 8 inch diameter 
polyvinyl chloride pipe (PVC) sewer. The new sewer line would convey flow to the new 
sewage lift station that will pump the sewage into an existing force main located in 
Highway 1.   The project would remove potential environmental risk to the estuary by 
providing future sewer service to homes presently reliant on individual septic systems. 

 

 

 

 

118



The District proposes to form an assessment district under Municipal Improvement Act 
of 1913 (Division 12 of the California Streets and Highways Code in order to finance 
needed wastewater collection system improvements to allow the neighborhood residents 
to tie into the District’s wastewater system.   
 
Under Streets and Highways Code Section 10104, any special district (such as the District) 
proposing to form an assessment district must first request the consent of the county in 
which the assessment district is to be formed, and the county must pass a resolution 
evidencing its consent before the special district can take its first action to initiate the 
assessment district proceedings.  On June 29, 2023, the District Board adopted a resolution 
requesting the County’s consent under Section 10104, and on October 3, 2023, the County 
of Monterey passed a resolution consenting to the initiation of assessment district 
formation proceedings by the District. 
 
Now that the County has adopted the required resolution, the Board is able to consider 
adopting the two attached resolutions.   
 

• The Resolution of Intention 2023-37 declares the District’s official intent to form 
the assessment district; directs Monterey Bay Engineers, Inc., as the assessment 
engineer, to prepare the required assessment engineer’s report describing the 
project and the estimated project costs, and apportioning the project costs to each 
parcel in the assessment district, and to prepare a boundary map for the 
assessment district; and contains additional findings required by the Streets and 
Highways Code.    
 
• The Resolution 2023-61 Preliminarily Approving Assessment Engineer’s Report 
gives preliminary approval to the assessment engineer’s report, subject to any 
changes approved by the District prior to the public hearing; sets the public 
hearing regarding the assessment district for the Board meeting to be held on 
December 12, 2023; directs the Board Clerk to mail a combined notice and ballot 
to the owners of each parcel within the assessment district; and directs the Board 
Clerk of the Board to record the boundary map for the assessment district.  

 
In addition to the public hearing, an informational workshop will be held on November 
14, 2023 at 6 p.m. at the Highlands Fire Station meeting room. 
 
 
 
 
 

119



FUNDING: 
   
Funding for this project will be provided through the sale of bonds, with debt service on 
the bonds paid through the collection of annual assessments levied on property within 
the assessment district.  The maximum total proposed assessment for each single family 
home is $69,000.  Assessments will be levied on properties within the District for 30 years, 
with anticipated annual assessments dependent on the interest rate on the bonds.  Those 
rates will be determined when bonds are sold in 2024.  
 
 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 
 
 
Attachments:  1. Resolution No. 2023-37- CAWD Resolution of Intention 

2. Resolution No. 2023-61- CAWD Resolution Preliminarily       
Approving Assessment Engineer’s Report 

   3. Preliminary Assessment Engineer’s Report  
   4. Proposed Boundary Map  
    
 
 

120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



EXHIBIT "C" 

WILLIAMS 

IAPN 241-061-005 

68 HWY 1 

DOC: 2021010550 

----------

RODGERS 

APN 241-061-015 

29152 HWY 1 

DOC: 2018050609 

ORIGINAL IS 1" = 20' 

0 5 10 20 

1 I 1 1 
GRAPHIC SCALE 

I 

I 

-
----

18 

I 

I 

EASEMENT EXHIBIT 
PREPARED FOR 

THE CORONA ROAD SEWER PROJECT 

CARMEL AREA WASTEJATER DISTRICT 

PREPARED BY 

MONTEREY BAY ENGINEERS, INC. 
607 CHARLES A VENUE, SUITE B 

SEASIDE, CA 93955 

0 /19 ��3 (831) 899-7899 

141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



LEGEND: 
/ \ ') ------:--r--\ 

I IJWN)ame.M.Q 
... 

/'\. \ 
). A Nl·GSl-azl I ................ lf \----

--1 
AC . . . . ... ASPHALTIC CONCRETE 

.,,,,/' '\..--/,' \ it. ,.,..,, !' --} � DI . . .DROP INLET 

/ 
' 

/ 

/"" ... =..,. ,' .. :t.:- j 
i ( �--\ ;' 

I 
1 I 

T--1
EP . . ... EDGE OF PAVEMENT 

/ I u:eAmaCIONlA.Q 
_____ __ 

/ 
' 

.. 241-<01-C, I 

---

UP .......... UTllTY POLE ,.., 
✓ I 

UR .......... UTILITY RISER 

/ \ ■.:- 1 o,; I :• t/, I 
\ L"""" I I I 

),, ' ( / I /L . .l,, \ \: "":·:.·t"' I-==·: I ( ........ 1 W .......... UTUTY VAULT 
WM .......... WATER METER 

\ I: 

:1 , ,1- .L __ J.j , - , .. ,., ... ,..., , I WV . . .. WATER VALVE 
0 .. .. PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE 

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER LINE 
APPROXIMATE WATER LINE \ ---/'\._ f ! ,: : ·--· '

....,.. \ -- I 
,,. :MHlll-GDI 

-- --

-..,...,---' I 
llll2lll!1 

• ---
I _., I 

/'-,, - \\_ '- .. ::;a : ! t- T-----------1· 1\ � -:=': :.---- J' / 
1 -

I 
: l .... , ... -, I 

� � 1--
, "'''" 1 I � .---, -7,, -

, 
,, 

-- : ' _, I "\ � ii/ 

, 
I 

' " \ I ..... , ... ,..,, I \ \ --- ,,, 
I 

""'"� -- : .. ' ' "'""' -- \ 

,., ... ,...., l ---J... 1PROl'OSEl)COINI:TOI , " I 
- t#, \\ _,. 

( ,>E-�� �•VNJ..TlPLll'N:S!AlDI 1 /:Z: F �� ) ::�::: � .. =.... 11\ ......... ,.... I 

1 ..,.. '-'-i,;;; ===- �= /,_ --- _ \\\ 

ff1.D71 / I I 
-- -- ---rrt-- "1:1 

l__ 
,..,.,...,..,, T/ =rc:f:i��I' ---- ------ I r II --- > 

I 

�

- '-'� 
IC, - -..... 

/ \ • ...,... \\\l!CXIDM -

-
- ,' I I I 

I "'"1:1 

... , "-.. I I 
: ' "' .. �..... 11, ili-

' , -- -- - ' ..... ' """" """"'.. 
..-... 

( � ,..._ ----- -:---i ',' -=-,. ' ,- I ,:.:..-.. I ...... -- //1 1 �""
I .. ,.,...,..,, _:s::::--_ "•---, rl - I / 0- 11 

: • .__, 
'" _, I Nt::::, 

... -�� I ,'"'1111' 1, I 
, \\

R:141--Glll-c'l / OH 

..,,,---
- ..................... I 

, .... I /' , -------,--4-r.----...J 
IO(r!Dll,IIQIO "T'l;;,<; 

__ .,,.. I """" ----- ' __ _,, : ·: ... • , , 
\\ I "" 

� ./ I .,.,.,..,,.... A' ---
'f!j..._ J I , ,/ - � \ ' � I -

( / I - ' I 
l I //' ... ,.,.,., .. ,, � \ ' \ "' / ....., ' , 

t 
' ' , ,.,....... : """ � \ / """' \\ 

' , 
', ,'-

, ,' 
ll1t - .. 2'1-<lll-- \\\ I 

v ---- ,'>"I----- . , .
1-- \ •-- \" , 

--- ..._ :::-�---"T-- : I / 
\\\\ / 

---- °""'"' --�==-7== ' • 
I !', _311 

--- _..,.,_,,,..,. 1 .,., � I 

,\\ 
I 

,.,,..,:'' / ,//-'' : '  I 1G 
,- \\I

i
' 

_.,.,,,, / /. I I ' :� -- - \i 
_,,,,, CONt:CllOH?' ,' , I I I 

--

', ____ =r ,' / , I , I 
--- II• 

" ------- / / / "" I I 

j 
------

� 
mm , , , ,,_,.,..,,_.,, m: I 

', """�·- /4, t,�,<,,, ""'""'�': -::c::.= '1
"""" 

' 
�, ' - I I I 

":"' ........ 

"\. �, ,, I / 
...,_, 

' , .,,,./ ' ... _ I I 
' 

�'y �, /,�, -- I : f-
-

/ • 
,., , 0IAll. IIIN.NIJS 

,.-
I , , """"'"""'"" I I - _j SAIIITMT -- STSIDI -

/. 
I , � ,....,..,,_ I 

' 

-

I I 
,, ,,,,..__ I I ' 

··-· 

I 
, 

-
I 

--

� 
, / ,/ I I I 

,<r/'-L.�./ -· 

- I 
,

,' / 24� 
I I I 

" ... �,..��IJ'"tl...... --- OClaCIIIA WAT 

\ /·· / -- / I L_ _ __J 
• .,flJ -.., .......... � 

, / 
I I ' 

-·- -·--

i----' / / _____ J L ... 
- - 1,;/,r/)a ww, - ___ _ 

- , , - r r .-:...-:-..:.�·--·--
i�=-:� oe.1•-- .... , .. -:: 

....... --..-

151



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-37 
 

A RESOLUTION OF INTENTION TO MAKE ACQUISITIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS 
FOR THE PROPOSED CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT ASSESSMENT 

DISTRICT NO. 23-01 (CORONA ROAD AREA SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM PROJECT) 
 

-oOo- 
 

WHEREAS, the Carmel Area Wastewater District (the “District”) has commenced 
proceedings for the formation of a proposed assessment district (the “Assessment District”) in 
order to finance certain acquisitions and improvements described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, at the request of the District, Monterey Bay Engineers, Inc., prepared a map 

specifying the exterior boundaries of the assessment district (the “Boundary Map”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the District has submitted a copy of the Boundary Map and this Resolution to 

the County of Monterey for its approval as required under Streets and Highways Code §10104; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, on October 3, 2023, the County of Monterey approved the revised Map and 

this proposed Resolution; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the 

Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the District as follows: 
 
Section 1. Intention. The public interest, convenience and necessity require, and the 

Board intends to order, the “Work,” as defined in Exhibit “A” attached to and incorporated by 
reference in this resolution, for the Assessment District.  The Assessment District shall be known 
as “Carmel Area Wastewater District Assessment District No. 23-01 (Corona Road Area Sanitary 
Sewer System Project).”  

 
Section 2. Law Applicable. Except as herein otherwise provided for the issuance of 

bonds, all the improvements shall be constructed as provided in the Municipal Improvement Act 
of 1913 (Division 12 of the Streets and Highways Code of California) (the “Act”).  

 
Section 3. Nature and Location of, and Grades for, Improvements. The Work is to be 

completed in the manner specified in the plans, profiles and specifications to be made therefor, as 
hereinafter provided.  There is to be excepted from the Work anything already done to line and 
grade and marked excepted or shown not to be done in the plans, profiles and specifications.  
Whenever any public way is herein referred to as running between two public ways, or from or to 
any public way, the intersections of the public ways referred to are included to the extent that work 
is shown on the plans to be done therein. The streets and highways are or will be more particularly 
shown in the records in the offices of the Monterey County Recorder, and shall be shown upon the 
plans. 

 
Section 4. Change of Grade. Notice is hereby given of the fact that in many cases the 

Work will result in a grade different from that currently existing. 

152



 
Section 5. Work on Private Property. In cases where there is any disparity in level or 

size between the improvements proposed to be made herein and private property, and where it is 
more economical to eliminate the disparity by Work on the private property than by adjustment of 
the Work on public property, this Board hereby determines that it is in the public interest and more 
economical to do the Work on private property to eliminate the disparity.  In that case, the Work 
on private property shall, with the written consent of the owner of the property, be done and the 
actual cost thereof may be added to the proposed assessment of the lot on which the work is to be 
done. 

 
Section 6. Official Grades. This Board hereby adopts and establishes as the official 

grades for the Work the grades and elevations to be shown in the plans, profiles and specifications. 
All the grades and elevations are to be in feet and decimals thereof with reference to the datum 
plane of this District. 

 
Section 7. Descriptions - General. The descriptions of the Work contained in this 

resolution are general in nature and are not intended to be complete. The information contained in 
the Engineer’s Report, hereinafter directed to be made and filed, shall be controlling as to the 
correct and detailed description of the Work. 

 
Section 8. Special Benefit and Boundary Map. This Board finds the contemplated 

Work to be of more than local or ordinary public benefit, and the related costs and expenses are 
made chargeable upon the Assessment District.  The exterior boundaries of the Assessment District 
are shown on a map thereof on file in the office of the Board Clerk, to which reference is hereby 
made for further particulars. The map indicates the extent of the territory proposed to be included 
in Assessment District and shall govern for the purpose of determining the extent of the 
Assessment District. 

 
Section 9. Public Property. This Board declares that all public streets, highways, lanes, 

alleys, and properties owned by the United States, the State of California or any local government, 
or any of their political subdivisions, located within the Assessment District and serving a public 
function shall be omitted from the assessment hereafter to be made unless they constitute lands (a) 
owned by a public school or community college district; (b) acquired by a public agency through 
the foreclosure or deed in lieu of such foreclosure of a purchase money mortgage, deed of trust or 
similar security interest in favor of the United States, the State of California or any local 
government, or any of their political subdivisions; or (c) receiving a special benefit from the Work. 

 
Section 10. Engineer’s Report. Monterey Bay Engineers, Inc., being a competent firm 

employed for the purpose hereof as the Engineer of Work for this Assessment District (the 
“Engineer of Work”), is hereby directed to make and file with the District Board Clerk a report in 
writing (the "Engineer's Report"), presenting the following: 

 
(a) Maps and descriptions of the lands and easements to be acquired, if any. 
 
(b) Plans and specifications of the proposed improvements if the improvements 

are not already installed.  The plans and specifications do not need to be detailed and are 
sufficient if they show or describe the general nature, location, and extent of the 
improvements.  If the Assessment District is divided into zones, the plans and 

153



specifications shall indicate the class and the type of improvements to be provided for each 
zone.  The plans or specifications may be prepared as separate documents, or either or both 
may be incorporated in the Engineer’s Report as a combined document. 

 
(c) A general description of works or appliances already installed and any other 

property necessary or convenient for the operation of the improvements, if the works, 
appliances, or property are to be acquired as part of the improvements. 

 
(d) An estimate of the cost of the improvements and of the cost of lands, rights-

of-way, easements, and incidental expenses in connection with the improvements, 
including any cost of issuing and registering bonds. 

 
(e) A diagram showing, as they existed at the time of the passage of this 

Resolution, all the following: 
 

(1) The exterior boundaries of the Assessment District. 
 
(2) The boundaries of any zones within the Assessment District. 
 
(3) The lines and dimensions of each parcel of land within the 

Assessment District. 
 

Each parcel shall be given a separate number upon the diagram, and each zone 
within the Assessment District shall be separately identified. The diagram may refer to the 
county assessor’s maps for a detailed description of the lines and dimensions of any parcels, 
in which case those maps shall govern for all details concerning the lines and dimensions 
of the parcels. 

 
(f) A proposed assessment of the total amount of the cost and expenses of the 

proposed improvement upon the several parcels of land in the Assessment District in 
proportion to the estimated benefits to be received by each parcel, respectively, from the 
improvement. The assessment shall refer to the parcels by their respective numbers as 
assigned pursuant to subparagraph (e) above.  When any portion or percentage of the costs 
and expenses of the acquisitions and improvements is to be paid from sources other than 
assessments, the amount of such portion or percentage shall first be deducted from the total 
estimated cost and expenses of the acquisitions and improvements, and the assessment shall 
include only the remainder of the estimated cost and expenses. 

 
(g) A proposed maximum annual assessment upon each of the several parcels 

of land in the Assessment District to pay costs incurred by the District and not otherwise 
reimbursed resulting from the administration and collection of assessments or from 
administration or registration of any associated bonds and reserve or other related funds. 
 
Section 11. Use of Surplus. If any excess is realized from the assessment, it shall be 

used, in such amounts as this Board may determine, in accordance with the provisions of the Act, 
for one or more of the following purposes: 

 

154



(a) transfer to the general fund of this District, provided that the amount of any 
such transfer may not exceed the lesser of $1,000 or 5% of the total amount expended from 
the improvement fund; 

 
(b) as a credit upon the assessment and any supplemental assessment or for the 

redemption of bonds, or both; or 
 
(c) for the maintenance of the improvements. 
 

Section 12. Contact Person.  The General Manager of the District is hereby designated 
as the person to answer inquiries regarding any protest proceedings with respect to the proposed 
assessment.   

 
Any inquiries should be directed during regular office hours to:  
 
Rachél Lather, MS, PE 
Principal Engineer 
Carmel Area Wastewater District 
3945 Rio Road,  
Carmel, California 93922 
(831)624-1248   
 
Section 13. Contracts with Others. To the extent that any of the work, rights, 

improvements and acquisitions indicated in the Engineer’s Report, to be made as provided herein, 
is shown to be connected to the facilities, works or systems of, or are to be owned, managed and 
controlled by, any public agency other than this District, or any public utility, this Board intends 
to enter into an agreement with the public agency or public utility pursuant to Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 10100) of the Act, which agreement may provide for, among other 
matters, the ownership, operation and maintenance by the public agency or public utility of the 
works, rights, improvements and acquisitions the installation of all or a portion of the 
improvements by the public agency or utility and the service to the properties in the area benefiting 
from the work, rights, improvements and acquisitions, and that the agreement shall become 
effective after proceedings have been conducted for the levy of the assessments and sale of bonds, 
and funds are available to carry out the terms of any such agreement. 

 
Section 14. Improvement Bonds or Other Indebtedness. Notice is hereby given that 

serial or term improvement bonds, or other indebtedness, including without limitation a loan made 
by the State of California in accordance with Chapter 6.1 (commencing with Section 10550) of the 
Act, to represent unpaid assessments (“Bonds”), bearing interest at a rate not to exceed the 
maximum permitted by applicable law, will be issued hereunder in the manner provided by the 
Improvement Bond Act of 1915, Division 10 of the California Streets and Highways Code (the 
“Bond Law”), the last installment of which shall mature not to exceed 39 years from the September 
2 next succeeding 12 months from their issue date. The Bonds shall be issued in such series and 
mature in such principal amounts at the times as shall be determined by this Board at the time of 
their issuance.  The provisions of Part 11.1 of the Bond Law, providing an alternative procedure 
for the advance payment and redemption of bonds, shall apply to the Bonds. This Board intends 
to create a special reserve fund pursuant to and as authorized by Part 16 of the Bond Law.   

 

155



Section 15. Refunding of Bonds. The Bonds may be refunded pursuant to Division 11.5 
of the California Streets and Highways Code upon the determination of this Board that the public 
interest or necessity requires such refunding.  Such refunding may be undertaken by this Board 
when, in its opinion, lower prevailing interest rates may allow reduction in the amount of the 
installments of principal and interest upon the assessments given to owners of property assessed 
for the Works.  The refunding bonds shall bear interest at a rate not to exceed that which is stated 
in the resolution of this Board expressing its intention to issue the refunding bonds, which shall 
also set forth the maximum term of years of the refunding bonds.  The refunding shall be 
accomplished pursuant to Division 11.5 (commencing with Section 9500) of the California Streets 
and Highways Code, except that, if, following the filing of the report specified in Section 9523 
and any subsequent modifications of the report, this Board finds that each of the conditions 
specified in that resolution of intention is satisfied and adjustments to the assessments are on a pro-
rata basis, this Board may approve and confirm the report and may, without further proceedings, 
authorize, issue and sell the refunding bonds pursuant to Chapter 3 (commencing with Section 
9600) of Division 11.5 of the California Streets and Highways Code. 

 
Section 16. Division 4. This Board intends to comply with Division 4 of the Streets and 

Highways Code of California by proceeding under Part 7.5 thereof.  To that end, the Engineer of 
Work is hereby directed to include in the Engineer’s Report all the material specified by such Part 
7.5 and for which the total true value shall be estimated as the full cash value of the parcels of land 
in the Assessment District, as shown on the last equalized assessment rolls of the County of 
Monterey.  

 
Section 17. No Private Contract. Notice is hereby given that, in the opinion of this 

Board, the public interest will not be served by allowing the property owners to take the contract 
for the construction of the improvements and therefore that, pursuant to Section 20487 of the 
California Public Contract Code, no notice of award of contract shall be published. 

 
Section 18. Reimbursement Declaration. The District intends to issue the Bonds, which 

are “Obligations” under Section 1.150-2 of the regulations of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, 
as amended (the “Regulations”) This Board hereby declares that the District reasonably expects to 
use a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds for reimbursement of expenditures for the Improvements 
that are paid before the date of issuance of the Bonds. This section of this resolution shall be solely 
for the purpose of complying with the provisions of the Regulations and shall not be deemed an 
approval of all or any part of the Assessment District or a commitment on the part of this Board to 
issue any or all of the Bonds or otherwise provide for financing. 

 
Section 19. Professionals Appointed.  The District hereby appoints Jones Hall, A 

Professional Law Corporation, San Francisco, California, as bond counsel.  The General Manager, 
President of the Board, and District Counsel are hereby authorized and directed to enter into an 
appropriate agreement with this firm for its services to the District for the formation of the 
Assessment District and the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds. 

 
* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District duly held on October 26, 2023 by the following vote: 
 

156



AYES:   BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:   BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS 

____________________________ 
Ken White, President of the Board 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 
Domine Barringer,  Secretary of the Board 

157



EXHIBIT A 
 

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT  
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 23-01  

(CORONA ROAD AREA SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM PROJECT)  
 
 

 
“Work” means the construction and acquisition of the following public improvements (as 

described below, the “Improvements”) within the Carmel Area Wastewater District (the 
“District”), County of Monterey, State of California: 

 
The Improvements will consist of a new sanitary sewer collection system and 

associated sanitary sewer improvements installed in public right -of-way and on parcels of 
land (which the District has easement rights over) to replace failing septic systems serving 
residents within the Assessment District on Corona Road, Corona Way and to the west of 
Highway 1. 

 
The Improvements will include a gravity collection system along with a Pumping 

Station.  The proposed sanitary sewer collection system will consist of three (3) separate 
gravity mains.  All these main line sanitary sewers will be made of Polyvinyl Chloride 
pipe, now commonly used for sanitary sewer gravity mains.  The longest main will be 
approximately 3,500 feet in length, beginning at the easterly side of State Highway 1, north 
of the intersection of Corona Road and State Highway 1, and will extend southerly along 
the easterly side of Highway 1, and then easterly and upward along Corona Road.  Another 
branch gravity main in Corona Way will extend approximately 600 feet from Corona Road 
northerly and upward.  The third branch gravity main will be approximately 300 feet in 
length and will be constructed along the easterly side of State Highway 1 northerly and 
upward. 

 
A new sanitary sewer Pumping Station is proposed to be constructed on the 

westerly side of State Highway 1.  The Pumping Station will be constructed such that is 
entirely underground, except for the Pacific Gas & Electric Company's electrical service 
facilities and the Pumping Station control panel.  The new sanitary sewer Pumping Station 
will receive raw sewage from the collection mains as described above.  The Pumping 
Station will have a wet well to temporarily store the raw sewage from the collection system 
in the times between pump operations. 

 
The cost of the Improvements includes all planning, design, construction 

administration and general administration services, the acquisition of all necessary 
easements and rights of way, the acquisition of licenses, franchises and permits, and the 
construction of all ancillary improvements that may be necessary for, or convenient to the 
construction of the Improvements. 
 

158



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-61 
 

A RESOLUTION PRELIMINARILY APPROVING ENGINEER’S REPORT AND 
DIRECTING RELATED ACTIONS FOR THE PROPOSED CARMEL AREA 
WASTEWATER DISTRICT ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 23-01 (CORONA ROAD 
AREA SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM PROJECT) 

 
-oOo- 

 
WHEREAS, on October 26, 2023, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District (the “District”) adopted its resolution entitled "A 
Resolution of Intention to Make Acquisitions and Improvements for the Proposed Carmel 
Area Wastewater District Assessment District No. 23-01 (Corona Road Area Sanitary 
Sewer System Project)" (the “Resolution of Intention”) under the Municipal Improvement 
Act of 1913 (Division 12 of the Streets and Highways Code of California (the “Act”), to 
initiate proceedings under the Act in and for the proposed Carmel Area Wastewater 
District Assessment District No. 23-01 (Corona Road Area Sanitary Sewer System Project) 
(the “Assessment District”) for the making of certain public improvements (the 
“Improvements”) as described in the Resolution of Intention.; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution of Intention designated Monterey Bay Engineers, Inc., 

as engineer of work for the Assessment District (the “Engineer of Work”) and directed 
the Engineer of Work to prepare and file with the Board Clerk, pursuant to the Act, a 
report (the “Engineer’s Report”) containing the information requested in the Resolution 
of Intention, to which reference is hereby made for further particulars; and  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the 

Board of the District as follows: 
 
Section 1. Engineer’s Report Preliminarily Approved. The Engineer of Work 

has prepared and filed the Engineer’s Report with the Board Clerk.  This Board, with the 
aid of District’s staff, has reviewed the Engineer’s Report and hereby finds it to be 
sufficient for purposes of subsequent proceedings for the Assessment District. The 
Engineer’s Report is hereby preliminarily approved. 

 
Section 2. Public Hearing. Pursuant to the Act, this Board hereby orders a 

public hearing to be held before this Board at 3945 Rio Road, Carmel, California, on 
December 12, 2023, at the hour of 2:00 p.m., for the purposes of this Board’s (i) 
determining whether the public interest, convenience and necessity require the 
Improvements, whether the properties in the Assessment District are specially benefited 
by the Improvements, the tabulation of special assessment ballots and the existence of 
any majority protest, and (ii) taking final action upon the Engineer’s Report and the 
assessments proposed therein.  The public hearing may be continued from time to time 
as determined by this Board. 

159



 
Section 3. Notice. The Board Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to cause 

notice of the hearing ordered under Section 2 hereof to be given by mailing, with postage 
prepaid, via United States mail, and the notice shall be deemed to have been given at the 
time of mailing.  The envelope or cover of the mailing shall include the name of the 
District and the return address of the Board Clerk. The mailed notice shall be given to all 
owners of property proposed to be assessed within the Assessment District, as shown in 
the Engineer’s Report, using the names and addresses that appear on the last equalized 
assessment roll of the County of Monterey (the “County”) or the State Board of 
Equalization assessment roll, as the case may be. The notice shall be mailed not less than 
45 days before the date of the public hearing ordered under Section 2 hereof.  

 
The amount of the proposed assessment for each parcel shall be calculated, and 

the record owner of each parcel shall be given written notice by mail of the, the total 
amount of the proposed assessment chargeable to each of the entire Assessment District 
and the owner’s particular parcel, the anticipated duration of payments for the proposed 
assessment (if bonded), the reason for the proposed assessment and the basis upon which 
the amount of the proposed assessment was calculated.  Each mailed notice to owners 
shall contain a ballot that includes the property owner’s name, identification of the parcel 
and a request to support or oppose the proposed assessment.  

 
Each notice shall include, in a conspicuous place, a summary of the procedures 

applicable to the completion, return and tabulation of ballots, including a statement that 
the existence of a majority protest (in which ballots submitted in opposition exceed those 
submitted in favor of the proposed assessment, with ballots weighed according to 
proportional financial obligation of the affected property) will result in the proposed 
assessment’s not being imposed.  Each mailed ballot shall include a sealable return 
envelope with the District’s address for the completed ballot. 

 
 
Section 4. Ballots. The Board Clerk (or such other person designated by the 

General Manager) is hereby designated as the impartial person, without a vested interest 
in the outcome of the assessment, responsible for the tabulation of the ballots. The Board 
Clerk shall maintain a separate and secure file for the safekeeping of the assessment 
ballots as they are received and pending tabulation.  Ballots shall be received up to the 
time of the closing of the public hearing.   

 
Ballots shall remain sealed until the close of the public hearing and the beginning 

of the tabulation. Ballots may be submitted, or changed, or withdrawn by the person 
submitting the ballot prior to the conclusion of the public hearing.  During and after 
tabulation, the ballots shall constitute disclosable public records under Section 6252 of 
the California Government Code.  

 

160



Section 5. Boundary Map. The proposed boundaries of the Assessment District 
are shown on a map on file in the office of the Board Clerk (the “Boundary Map”), which 
indicates by a boundary line the extent of the territory to be included in the proposed 
Assessment District.  The Boundary Map shall govern for purposes of establishing the 
boundaries of the Assessment District proceedings, and reference is hereby made to it for 
further particulars. The Board Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to (i) endorse upon 
the original, copy and at least one facsimile of the Boundary Map the date of its filing 
with the Board Clerk and of the adoption of this resolution and (ii) cause a facsimile of 
the Boundary Map to be filed with the County Recorder within 15 days of the adoption 
of this resolution, but in no event later than 15 days before the date of the public hearing 
ordered under Section 2 hereof. The County Recorder shall endorse upon the Boundary 
Map the time and date of its filing and shall fasten the same securely in a book of maps 
of assessment and community facilities districts that the County Recorder keeps in its 
office.  The County Recorder shall index the Boundary Map by the name of the District 
and the distinctive designation of the proposed Assessment District.  

 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on October 26, 2023 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   BOARD MEMBERS: 
NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 
ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

    
 _______________________________ 

    Ken  White, President of the Board 
 
ATTEST: 
_____________________________________ 
Domine Barringer,  Secretary of the Board 
 
 
 

161



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 
                        Daryl Lauer, Collections Superintendent 
 
Date:  October 26, 2023 
 
Subject: Purchase of a Replacement Collections Rounds Truck 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution authorizing the General 
Manager to approve the purchase of a replacement Collections vehicle not to exceed 
$65,000.  
 
DISCUSSION  
 

This recommendation is to replace Collections truck Unit 29 with a new Ford F250 
4X4 truck due to an engine failure. The cost to repair the truck over 4 years versus replace 
is higher and there is more risk with the repair.  

 
Unit 29 is a 2015 Ford F250 4X4 with 42,603 miles and is used for inspection of 

canyon pipelines and manholes along with emergency response. Staff were driving canyon 
rounds when the oil filter was damaged. The truck was immediately turned off when the 
low oil light activated. The oil filter was ripped off by a tree branch that was on the ground. 
This vehicle was up to date on all PMs and had no issues prior to the damage.   

 
The truck was towed back to the plant and repaired and then placed back in service 

for less than 2 weeks before the engine stopped working. There was internal damage 
during the low oil – the engine was able to run for a period of time before it stopped 
working but the end result was the same.  Low oil – bearings and cylinders were damaged, 
causing the engine to lose compression on two cylinders. We do not have a diesel repair 
shop.  This is specialized work requiring specialized tools. 
 
The truck was towed to the local Ford dealership. The diagnosis determined that 2 
cylinders failed, and the cost estimate provided to repair is $27,000.  
 

  

162



If the repair was done it is the staff’s opinion that a new vehicle would have to be 
purchased anyway in year 4 after the repair due to the wear of other components. There is 
risk that the repair may lead to prolonged issues since an engine replacement in a shop 
does not have the same quality control as the factory.  
 

 
 
The recommended purchase strategy is to competitively bid the truck purchase on the open 
market rather than utilize the California Statewide Contract. Heavy duty trucks are in 
limited supply due to production constraints and high demand. There is a risk that the 
supply could be further impacted due to the United  Auto Workers strike so the timing of 
this truck is critical so that staff have the needed resources to respond to emergencies and 
complete weekly work.  
 
The Statewide contract will result in a lead time of 1 year plus and by competitively 
bidding an equal or lower price can also be obtained compared to the Statewide contract.  
 
Unit 29 would be sold as surplus on GovDeals.com website with an estimated surplus 
value of $5,000. 
 
Staff has contacted CSRMA regarding filing a damage claim on the truck. 
 
FUNDING 
 
The 2023-24 Collections Capital Unfunded Capital Equipment not to exceed $65,000.  
 

163



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-62 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO 
PURCHASE A TRUCK IN FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 

EXCEED $65,000 
 

-oOo- 
 

WHEREAS, the District requires the replacement of a Collections rounds 

truck for inspection and emergency response; and 

WHEREAS, the District will competitively bid the vehicle purchase on the 

open market to obtain the lowest price; and 

WHEREAS, the District has determined the truck is a critical asset that 

requires immediate replacement to maintain the required level of service for the 

collections system; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District, which is convinced by the staff report on October 

26, 2023, that this proposal has merit and hereby authorizes the General Manager 

to purchase a truck for fiscal year 2023-24 in an amount not to exceed 

$65,000. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of 

the Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on October 26, 2023, by the 

following vote: 

AYES: BOARD MEMBERS:  
NOES: BOARD MEMBERS: 
ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS: 
 

       _______________________________ 
Ken White, President of the Board 

ATTEST: 
_____________________________________ 
Domine Barriner, Secretary to the Board 

164



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 
                        Daryl Lauer, Collections Superintendent 
 
Date:  October 26, 2023 
 
Subject: Purchase of Computerized Maintenance Management Software and 

Implementation 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution authorizing the General 
Manager to enter a contract with Mobile MMS a division of Websoft Developers Inc. in an 
amount not to exceed $85,800, which includes a 10% contingency amount for fiscal year 
2023-24, to purchase software and start up implementation for the treatment plant and 
collections Computerized Maintenance Management System (CMMS).   
 
 
DISCUSSION  
 

The District operates multiple platforms to track work such as repairs, Closed 
Caption Television Viewing, source control inspections, permits, underground service 
alerts (USA’s), etc. including two CMMS program. The collection system has been using 
ICOM, which is optimized for linear pipe assets and the treatment plant utilizes Mainsaver 
for vertical equipment type assets. To add further complexity the pump station vertical 
assets are in Mainsaver due to the limitation of ICOM.  
 
The vision is to combine all the stand-alone systems into one integrated system. This will 
provide better data visibility, reduce data entry time and make data easier to access when 
in the field. Data reporting and integration between different systems is a weakness of our 
current systems. Data must be exported from multiple systems to integrate information, 
which is time consuming and limited.  
 
District staff reached out to several CMMS software companies that are focused on the 
wastewater industries to determine if one program could effectively manage both 
horizonal and vertical assets integration, USA’s, and source control inspections.  

  

165



Staff participated in several software demonstrations and met with multiple companies to 
find the best fit for the District. We also reached out to our existing CMMS software 
companies to see if there were any plans for software upgrades that would meet the 
District’s goals. Both ICOM and Mainsaver do not have plans for a solution to meet our 
vertical and linear asset requirements.  
 
CMMS systems Evaluated as Professional Services: 

Software Rank* 
MobileMMS 1 
Cityworks 2 
Maximo  3 
Lucity  4 
Mainsaver 5 
ICOM  6 

*Rank is based on ability to meet District integration goals/requirements 
 
Mobile MMS has a large installed base of Water/Wastewater clients in California. The 
support and implementation team from Mobile MMS adds significant value by providing 
value added recommendations of how CAWD can improve our CMMS based on Mobile 
MMS’s vast experience.  
 
Collections budgeted the CMMS Upgrade for Fiscal Year 2023-24, but the Treatment Plant 
did not originally plan to upgrade this fiscal year. However, after researching solutions for 
Collections, staff determined there is significant value to transitioning both systems at the 
same time and will result in a cost savings since a large portion of the cost is in the 
implementation.  
 
The annual cost of Mainsaver, T4 Pipeline tool and ICOM CMMS is $38,955. Mobile MMS 
annual cost is $24,500, which is included in the $78,000 attached contract. Competitor 
systems that staff compared had an estimated annual cost of $50,000 due to higher 
overhead. 
 
Currently Mainsaver is utilized for purchase orders and purchase order contracts. The 
purchase order system will be migrated to the District’s existing financial software. The 
financial software is a good solution because the vendor information for purchase orders is 
already in place for accounts payable. This will integrate purchase orders with budgeting 
and make project accounting more efficient.  
 
Spare parts inventory will be included in the new CMMS and linked to assets as it is 
currently done in Mainsaver.  
 

166



  
Scope of Work 
MobileMMS Collections Implementation;  
  

1. Full implementation for all agency collection system tasks. We will convert all 
existing data sources and publish the agency's GIS on our ArcGIS server platform. 
We will meet on site every month with additional interim monthly web-based 
meetings. We plan on implementing all collection system tasks.  

2. GIS integration and display of all relevant data sources on a web-based system. 
 

3. Conversion of any existing data sources. This specifically includes all activities, 
workflows, and historical data included within the ICOM database. 

4. Line cleaning/root cutting/foaming and CCTV inspection including implementation 
of routes. 

5. CCTV inspection integration and tracking. 
6. Private Sewer Lateral (PSL) inspections. 
7. Compliance inspections (FOG) and permitting. 
8. Work Order management system for all lift station assets including automated 

routing, workflows, and escalation. 
9. Lift station and other asset inspections (manholes, recycled water, pressure main). 
10. Full asset lift station, fleet, equipment maintenance including PM scheduling. 
11. GPS surveying for GIS asset improvement. 
12. USA ticketing with Positive Response. 
13. Reporting. 
14. Use of ad-hoc reporting tools. 
15. Development of 10 customized reports or Excel datasets for management analysis. 
16. Training for system use and administrative management. 
17. This implementation cost includes any future modifications for included activities. 

 
MobileMMS Maintenance Implementation; 
 

1. Full implementation for all maintenance related tasks. This will include the 
following. 

2. Import of the Mainsaver database into MobileMMS including 
a. Assets 
b. Historical work orders 
c. Preventative maintenance schedules and workflows 

3. Modification of the above based on District direction. 
4. All other maintenance functions as yet undescribed. 
5. This implementation cost includes any future modifications for included activities. 

167



 
MobileMMS Plant Implementation; 

 
1. Full implementation for all plant operations.  

This will include the following; 
2. Plant rounds as previously described and tentatively implemented. 
3. Logbooks as directed similar to that demonstrated for CCWater. 
4. Plant sampling. 
5. All other maintenance functions as yet undescribed. 
6. This implementation cost includes any future modifications for included activities. 

 
 MobileMMS Permitting and Front-Office Implementation; 

  
1. Full implementation for all customer-related tasks.  
2. It will include permit tracking. The budget for this is a place holder based on further 

definition. 
 
FUNDING 
 
Collections: $54,000 (Licensing $24.5K, Implementation $24.5K, & $5.0K Permitting/Front 
Office) 
Treatment Plant: $24,000 (Maintenance $14.5K & Plant $9.5K) 
Total cost: $78,000 
Contingency (10%): $7,800 
Total with Contingency: $85,800 
 
The 2023-24 Collections Capital Equipment Budget: 
Line Item 3- $90,000 budgeted  
 
The 2023-24 Treatment Plant Capital Budget Unfunded 
  
 
 

168



1

Billing inquiries should be made to: Manoj Desai at (530) 759-8754 ext. 210or ar@websoftdev.com

Quote # Q-100101

Quote Date 08/15/2023

QUOTE
Websoft Developers, Inc.

2020 RESEARCH PARK DR STE 140
DAVIS, California 95618-6150

 TOTAL $78,000.00

Carmel Area Wastewater District
Attn:   Daryl Lauer
,

Subject :

Carmel Area Wastewater District: MobileMMS Quotation

We have a new mailing address:
PO Box 4008
Davis, CA 95617

# ITEM & DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

MobileMMS Licensing

1 Includes yearly hosted software license for MobileMMS software with unlimited access for all 

agency tasks. Pricing is based on a service population of approximately 11,000.

$24,500.00
  x 1.00 24,500.00

MobileMMS Collections Implementation

2 Full implementation for all agency collection system tasks.  We will convert all existing data sources 

and publish the agency's GIS on our ArcGIS server platform.  We will meet on site every month with 

additional interim monthly web-based meetings.  The attached feature list show a sample of the 

work that will be included in this implementation.  We plan on implementing all collection system 

tasks.  Plant-related activities will be addressed at a future date.

* GIS integration and display of all relevant data sources on a web-based system

* Conversion of any existing data sources.  This specifically includes all activities, workflows, and 

historical data included within the ICOM database

* Line cleaning/root cutting/foaming and CCTV inspection including implementation of routes

* CCTV inspection integration and tracking

* Private Sewer Lateral (PSL) inspections

* Compliance inspections (FOG) and permitting

* Work Order management system for all lift station assets including automated routing, 

workflows, and escalation

* Lift station and other asset inspections (manholes, recycled water, pressure main)

* Full asset lift station, fleet, equipment maintenance including PM scheduling

* GPS surveying for GIS asset improvement

* USA ticketing with Positive Response

* Activities to be defined

* Reporting

$24,500.00
  x 1.00 24,500.00

169



2

Billing inquiries should be made to: Manoj Desai at (530) 759-8754 ext. 210or ar@websoftdev.com

Sub Total 78,000.00

Total $78,000.00

# ITEM & DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

   - Use of ad-hoc reporting tools

   - Development of 10 customized reports or Excel datasets for management analysis

* Training for system use and administrative management   

This implementation cost includes any future modifications for included activities. 

MobileMMS Maintenance Implementation

3 Full implementation for all maintenance related tasks.  This will include the following

* Import of the Mainsaver database into MobileMMS including

   - Assets

   - Historical work orders

   - Preventative maintenance schedules and workflows

* Modification of the above based on district direction

* All other maintenance functions as yet undescribed

This implementation cost includes any future modifications for included activities. 

$14,500.00
  x 1.00 14,500.00

MobileMMS Plant Implementation

4 Full implementation for all plant operations.  This will include the following

* Plant rounds as previously described and tentatively implemented

* Log books as directed similar to that demonstrated for CCWater

* Plant sampling 

* All other maintenance functions as yet undescribed

This implementation cost includes any future modifications for included activities. 

$9,500.00
  x 1.00 9,500.00

MobileMMS Permitting and Front-Office Implementation

5 Full implementation for all customer-related tasks.  These tasks have not been well described so 

this list will not be very detailed.  It will include permit tracking.  The budget for this is a place 

holder based on further definition.  

$5,000.00
  x 1.00 5,000.00

170



3

Billing inquiries should be made to: Manoj Desai at (530) 759-8754 ext. 210or ar@websoftdev.com

Terms & Conditions
Recurring yearly fees will be billed annually with 1 initial payment. Initially implementation fee will be billed upon project initiation. Annual renewal 
will be billed automatically unless customer cancels services 30 days prior to renewal date. Renewal rates will include an annual increase equal of 
5%. This increase will be waived with a 3 year or longer contract.

171



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-63 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER 
INTO A CONTRACT WITH WEBSOFT DEVELOPERS, INC FOR 

COMPUTERIZED MAINTENANCE MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE IN 
FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $85,800 

 
-oOo- 

 
WHEREAS, the District requires the replacement of the Computerized 

Maintenance Management Software; and 

WHEREAS, the District has vetted multiple software solution to obtain 

the lowest overall cost for the District; and 

WHEREAS, the District has a requirement to integrate and track the data 

from inspections, permits, work orders and graphical information system to 

provide service to customers; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District, which is convinced by the staff report on 

October 26, 2023, that this proposal has merit and hereby authorizes the General 

Manager to enter a professional services contract for fiscal year 2023-24 in an 

amount not to exceed $85,800, which includes $7,800 contingency.  ($78,000 plus 10% 

contingency). 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of 

the Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on October 26, 2023, by the 

following vote: 

AYES: BOARD MEMBERS:  
NOES: BOARD MEMBERS: 
ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS: 
 

       _______________________________ 
Ken White, President of the Board 

ATTEST: 
_____________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary to the Board 

172



 
Staff Report 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
     
DATE: October 26, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Central Coast Long Term Environmental Assessment Network 

(CCLEAN)Memorandum of Agreement Update(MOA) 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution to approve the October 
2023 revision to the Central Coast Long Term Environmental Assessment Network 
(CCLEAN) Memorandum of Approval. 
 
DISCUSSION 
  
The CCLEAN Memorandum of Agreement was last signed by the various participants in 
2001.  There was an updated agreement approved at this Board’s July 2023 regular meeting. 
 Subsequently, the CCLEAN participants continued to obsess over this document and we 
now have what we feel can be called the “Final.”  The only substantive change since July 
2023 is in the language in item #12 on Indemnification.  Previously it was termed Joint 
Liability; however, going through it again and running it by multiple agency legal counsel 
we feel that the language in this version is correct.  
 
This document has been reviewed by all signatories. 
 
FINANCIAL 
 
There is no financial impact associated with this M OA.  The District’s National Pollutants 
Discharge Eliminations System (NPDES) permit,  per Attachment E – in Section IX.A, 
requires the District’s participation in CCLEAN. While the District is the smallest 
contributor of discharge into the Ocean, our program costs are reduced because we 
function as Lead Agency.  This simply means that we handle the project financials. 

  

173



 
Memorandum of Agreement 

For 
Central Coast Long-term Environmental Assessment Network 

(CCLEAN) 
 

 
THIS MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (MOA) 
Is entered into this 1st day of December, 2023, by and among those public agencies 
and Corporations, which have executed this MOA on the signature page “Participating 
members”. 
 
1. Recitals 
 

The public agencies and corporations signatory to this MOA will be known as the 
Central Coast Long-term Environmental Assessment Network (CCLEAN) and 
each of the agencies and corporations will be a member of CCLEAN and herein 
will be known as a member. Each member has an interest in monitoring 
compliance with their respective National Pollution Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) permit and Ocean Plan requirements. 
 
CCLEAN was established in 2001 in order to conduct a program to conduct 
analyses of scientifically based water quality information in a consistent and 
comparable way at the behest of dischargers to the Monterey Bay Sanctuary for 
specified compliance purposes and the provision of reliable trend; insights and 
impacts of the dischargers into the receiving waters. This program provides 
compliance data for the NPDES permit and Ocean Plan testing requirements and 
aids decision makers and the public in maintaining, restoring, and enhancing 
water quality and associated beneficial uses of coastal waters. 
 
The initial phase of the program was to last for a period of five years and has 
been extended year to year by the consent of all members and directives of the 
California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Central Coast Region (“Central 
Coast Water Board”). Based on the success of the initial CCLEAN program, the 
members saw value in data produced with consistent scientific methods among 
participating agencies as well as money saved in this combined effort. 
Collaboration on emerging water quality concerns is just one example of another 
benefit of this combined effort that CCLEAN has seen success in.  
 

 
2. Purpose 
 

In cooperation with the Central Coast Water Board, CCLEAN members 

174



implement and modify as needed a program to collect, assess, and disseminate 
scientifically based water quality information to determine compliance with the 
NPDES permit and Ocean Plan testing requirements and aid decision makers 
and the public in maintaining, restoring, and enhancing water quality and 
associated beneficial uses of coastal waters. 

 
3. Scope  
 

The tasks, which must be accomplished to meet CCLEAN objectives, are 
described in the CCLEAN Regional Monitoring Program Quality Assurance 
Project Plan (QAPP) which is submitted on an annual basis to the Central Coast  
Water Board through the agency of CCLEAN’s consultant under contract. 
Program modifications can be adjusted during the year by a majority vote of the 
steering committee members and as approved (as necessary) by the Central 
Coast Water Board. 
 

4. Lead Agency 
 

A Lead Agency will be selected from the members to administer and implement 
this MOA. The Lead Agency can be changed to another member with the 
majority consent of members. The Lead Agency shall have the following 
responsibilities: 
 
a.  Subject to the prior approval of the Steering Committee (see section 7), as 

provided hereafter, the Lead Agency shall enter into such agreements as 
necessary with public agencies or private firms to carry out the members 
objectives. 

 
b. The Lead Agency shall administer the MOA and maintain an appropriate book 

of accounts, which, among other things, shall specifically identify the costs 
incurred in implementing the MOA as well as the allocation of costs to each 
member. These records will be presented at the Steering Committee 
meetings and shall be subject to inspection by any of the members at all 
reasonable times. Specific accounting procedures to be used by the Lead 
Agency will be decided by the Steering Committee. 

 
c. The Lead Agency shall have the authority in its own name to make and enter 

into contracts, incur debts and liabilities, and undertake obligations on behalf 
of the members necessary for the accomplishment of the purpose of this 
MOA. 

175



 
The Lead Agency may charge members reasonable and necessary costs to 
administer the MOA not-to-exceed 7.0% of costs billed. 

 
5. Term and Parties 
 

This MOA shall become effective when executed by all members. The MOA shall 
remain in effect until modified. 

 
Any agency, corporation or individual within the territory of the Central Coast 
Water Board may become a member and a party to this MOA.  All members shall 
execute a copy of this MOA through their appropriate officials pursuant to the 
authority conferred by the governing body of the member.  All members pay 
appropriate buy-in fees determined by the formula developed by the membership 
and be approved by a unanimous vote of the current Steering Committee. The 
clerk of the new member shall file with the Lead Agency a duly executed copy of 
the MOA, together with a certified copy of said resolution, and a check for the 
appropriate member fee.  

 
7. Steering Committee 
 

a. Each member shall appoint from among its employees, one representative 
to the Steering Committee that is authorized to act on the member’s 
behalf. Other representatives may attend in the absence of the designated 
representative as a voting member or be present at any meeting as a non-
voting member. 

 
b. The location, in-person or virtually, of Steering Committee meetings will be 

selected by the Steering Committee. 
 
c. Rules for conducting meetings will be established at the first meeting but 

may be modified at subsequent meetings. However, a majority vote of the 
Steering Committee is necessary to make decisions. 

 
d.       To minimize the need for meetings, any decision that could be made at a   
 meeting may, with the approval of the Steering Committee, be made  

                     through an email vote conducted by the Lead Agency. 
 

e    The Steering Committee will elect a Steering Committee Chairperson and 

176



Secretary. 
 

f. The Steering Committee will have the following responsibilities: 
 

1. Approving service agreements between CCLEAN and public 
and private agencies for execution by the Lead Agency on 
behalf of CCLEAN, including selecting the CCLEAN program’s 
director to execute the program tasks; 

 
2. Developing and approving the annual budget for activities of 

CCLEAN; 
 

3. Developing and approving modifications to the CCLEAN 
Program and the MOA for approval by members; 

 
4. Developing procedures to be used by the Lead Agency to 

account for members revenues and expenditures. 
 

5. Developing strategies for carrying out the CCLEAN Program. 
 

6. Reviewing and approving the annual report. 
 

h. All actions of the Steering Committee shall be based on a majority vote of 
its members. Steering Committee members may submit votes for Steering 
Committee decisions by email if received by the Chairperson within 5 
business days of the call for an email vote. 

 
I. Meetings of the Steering Committee will be held routinely at a location 

agreed upon by the Steering Committee members. 
 
8. Budget and Allocation of Costs 
 

Costs to conduct the CCLEAN program include administrative expenses of the 
Lead Agency, fees from the consultants and laboratories that carry out the 
sampling and analyses, and the cost of the program director.  The annual budget 
shall be approved each year by June 30th by a majority vote of CCLEAN 
members.  Subsequent budget changes recommended by the Steering 
Committee shall be approved by a majority vote of CCLEAN members. 

177



 
Funds to support the budget for CCLEAN will be collected through program fees 
charged to the members. Membership fees are fixed yearly fees and program 
fees are based on the percentage of flow discharged from each member in 
relation to the total volume discharged to waters of the State of California as 
determined by the Steering Committee. Actual cost when known will be used in 
conjunction with the approved annual budget to determine each member’s actual 
cost. 
 
See Figure 1 for an example yearly budget. Historically each CCLEAN member 
has paid a flat fee with the basis of cost allocation based on discharge volume. 
 
The current basis of cost allocation for program fees is as follows:  

𝐶𝐶𝑛𝑛  = 𝐹𝐹𝑛𝑛 + 𝑆𝑆𝑛𝑛 +  
𝑄𝑄𝑛𝑛
∑ 𝑄𝑄𝑛𝑛 
 

× [𝑇𝑇 − 𝐹𝐹𝑛𝑛 + 𝐿𝐿 + 𝐺𝐺 + 𝐻𝐻] 

Cn = cost for single participating agency n 
T = annual budget for CCLEAN (contract to run program without single participant 
elements) 
Sn = program element(s) supported by single participant n 
Fn = flat participation fee for participating agency n 
Qn = 5-year total volume discharged to waters of California for agency n 
L = total lead agency overhead costs (currently 0.07 of T) 
G = total contingency funds for regional monitoring costs (currently 0.0386 of T) 
H = total contingency funds costs (currently 0.05 of T) 
 
In verbal form: 
The entirety of costs for the CCLEAN program, including technical aspects, Lead 
Agency overhead (7%), and contingency funds (3.86% for regional monitoring 
and 5% for other contingency funds), except for elements supported by a single 
participant (eg. San Lorenzo River monitoring) are added together. From this, the 
sum of flat participation fees is subtracted (participation fees are currently 
$30,000 for Vistra Moss Landing Energy Storage and $12,000 for each other 
CCLEAN member). The remaining costs are allocated to each CCLEAN 
participant in proportion to the 5-year total volume discharged to waters of the 
State of California (ocean or otherwise). Costs for single participant projects and 
flat participation fees are then added back to the single participant’s cost.  
 

178



 
Membership fees for new CCLEAN members who are not original signatories of 
the MOA will be determined in a similar manner as existing members and shall be 
approved by a unanimous vote of the Steering Committee.  Refunds or credits to 
the original signatories to reflect revenue obtained from new members will be 
made at the end of each budget cycle. 

 
9. Payment of Membership and Program Fees 
 

Fees as described in Section 8 will be billed to the members quarterly by the 
Lead Agency.  Each member shall submit payment to the Lead Agency within 
thirty days of receiving an invoice for fees due.  

 
10. Program Director 
 

The Program Director, in accordance with his or her contract with the Lead 
Agency,  manages the implementation of the CCLEAN Work Plan as determined 
by the Steering Committee. 

 
11. Disposition of Funds Upon Termination 
 

Upon termination of this MOA, any CCLEAN member funds remaining after 
payment, or providing for the payment, of all costs, expenses and charges 
validly incurred under this MOA shall be allocated back to each CCLEAN 
member in proportion to their contributions for the budget period from which the 
leftover funds derive. 

 
12. Indemnification Provision and Liability 
 

Each member of CCLEAN shall indemnify the other members for any liability 
which is imposed upon any one of the entities for injury caused by a negligent or 
wrongful act or omission occurring in the performance of this MOA by that 
member, including its officials, employees, contractors, or agents. 
Pursuant to California Govt. Code §895.4, the members agree the extent of 
liability among them shall be determined on the basis of their proportional 
contribution to CCLEAN member per Section 8, and that each member shall be 
entitled to receive contribution and to contribute to the other members on this 
basis. 

179



 
13. Termination 
 

If a member is no longer mandated to participate in CCLEAN,   they may 
terminate membership without cause with a five (5) business day written notice to 
the Lead Agency. Refunds will not be made once funds are committed to the 
annual work plan. 

 
14. Procedure for Execution  

This MOA may be signed in counterparts by the members and shall be binding 
on all signatories. 
 

180



Participating Members 
City of Watsonville 
 
By                                                      
      René Mendez, City Manager 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By                                                      
      Irwin Ortiz, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By                                                      
      Samantha Zutler, City Attorney 
 
 
City of Santa Cruz 
 
 
By                                                      
      Matt Huffaker, City Manager 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By                                                      
Leslie Cook, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By                                                      
Anthony P. Condotti, City Attorney 
 

 
City of Scotts Valley 
 
By                                                      
      Mali LaGoe, City Manager 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By                                                      
Cathie Simonovich, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By                                                      
Kirsten Powell, City Attorney 

 
 

Carmel Area Wastewater District 
 
 
By                                                      
Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By                                                      
Domine Barringer, Clerk of the 
Board 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By                                                      
 Robert R Wellington, Legal Counsel 
 
 

181



Monterey One Water 

By     
      Paul Sciuto, General Manager 

ATTEST: 

By  
Chayito Ibarra, Board Secretary  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By     
     Jim Gilpin, Legal Counsel 

Soquel Creek Water District 

By     
      Rob Duncan, General Manager 

ATTEST: 
By  
Emma Olin, Clerk of the Board 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By     
      ________, Legal Counsel 

Vistra Zero Moss Landing 
Energy Storage Facility 

By 
      ____________, Plant Manager

182



 
Figure 1: EXAMPLE CCLEAN BUDGET FOR PROGRAM YEAR 2022-2023 

183



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-64 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT FOR CENTRAL COAST LONG TERM 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT NETWORK (CCLEAN) 

-oOo- 

 

WHEREAS, the District is required to conduct a water quality monitoring program 
of its ocean discharge and has participated in CCLEAN since 2001 for this 
purpose; and 

WHEREAS, a network of other similarly situated public agencies has reviewed and 
participated in drafting the Memorandum of Agreement presented to the Board 
this date; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 
Area Wastewater District that it does hereby authorize and direct the General 
Manager to execute the Memorandum of Agreement for Central Coast Long 
Term Environmental Assessment Network and the Secretary of the Board to 
attest to said agreement. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on October 26, 2023, by the following 
vote: 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 
NOES: BOARD MEMBERS: 
ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS: 
             
     _____________________________________ 
     Ken White, President of the Board 
 
 
ATTEST: __________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary of the Board 

184



Oral Report - General Manager

185



Other Items Before The Board

186



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
     
DATE: October 26, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: November/December Board Meeting Date 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors pass a motion agreeing to cancel the regular 
November Board meeting and hold the December Board meeting on December 12, 2023. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The November Board meeting this year will fall four days after the Thanksgiving Day 
holiday.  The December meeting would normally be held on December 28, 2023.  Because 
that falls in between the Christmas and New Year holiday it would be difficult for staff to 
produce a packet.  Staff recommends that the November meeting be cancelled, and the 
December meeting be moved to Tuesday, December 12, 2023 at 2:00 p.m.   
 
This meeting is scheduled to correspond to the 45 day voting period for the Corona Road 
Assessment Project.   A special meeting will need to be held for the sealed ballots to remain 
sealed until the public hearing is complete. At the public hearing, Jones Hall-Scott 
Ferguson is to be in attendance and once the public hearing is closed, the ballots will be 
tabulated.  The ballots must remain sealed until the end of the public hearing.   Jones Hall 
will be responsible for the allocation of the parcel value and the ballot.  
 
In order to include the ballot mail on the 12th we must hold the meeting after 12:00 p.m. or 
noon.  The Post Office guarantees delivery by noon and we need to check the mail that day 
and include any ballots received on that date.  Therefore, we are requesting that our normal 
9:00 a.m. meeting be moved to 2:00 p.m. 
 
Holding the Board meeting on December 12th places it roughly midway between the 
October and January 2024 meeting and follows past practice for the holiday season.  
Additionally, the Principal Engineer will not be available later in December , and  her 
participation is required  for the Corona Road ballot. 
 
FINANCIAL 
None 

  

187



Information & Discussion Items

188



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  October 26, 2023 
 
Subject: Pebble Beach Community Services District (PBCSD)- Regular Board Meeting 

on September 29, 2023 
 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Agenda items from September 29, 2023, meeting that are of specific interest to this District: 
 

• Total cash balance at the end of August 2023 was $28.7M; of that $22.6M was 
designated for Capital Acquisition and Outlay Reserves. Property taxes comprise 
roughly 80% of PBCSD revenues with sewer operating expenses of $2.7M.   
 

• Budget to Actual year to date for August 2023 is 1% for total revenues and 4% for 
expenditures. 
 

• Approximately 62 million gallons (MG) or 190 Acre Feet (AF) of recycled water is 
stored in Forest Lake, which represents 54% of permitted capacity of 115 MG.  The 
current storage volume is 77% higher than the historic average of 35 MG or 107 AF. 
 

• Average daily wastewater flow of 372,000 gallons per day (GPD) was measured in 
August at the PBCSD-Carmel gate. This represents 31% of the total monthly flow at the 
Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) treatment facility.  
 

• The measured PBCSD flows were 3% above the five-year average of 362,000 GPD for 
August.  The CAWD flows were 3% above the five-year average of 1,173,000 GPD for 
August. 
 

• Total irrigation water demand for the 2023 calendar year through August was 608 AF. 
Total demand for the calendar year is 17% below the 5-year average usage of 733 AF 
through August. The months of July and August reflected a net storage decrease of 29 
MG as the reservoir dropped from 97 MG down to 68 MG.  
 
 

  

189



• Total production for Alternative Source Water for the 2023 calendar year through mid-
September was approximately 10.1 million gallons. 
 

• The Board approved an agreement with E2 Consulting Engineers to provide 
engineering design, bid-phase, and construction support services for the 2024 Sewer 
Replacement Project for $150K.  The 2024 project calls for replacement of 5,500 feet of 
sewer line, up to 3,000 feet of which is terracotta. 
 

• The Board authorized funding for utility trench construction for new electrical and 
communications infrastructure for Pump Stations P-1 and P-2 in the amount of 
$105,000. 
 

• Average daily wastewater flows measured in million gallons per day (MG) show: 
 

MONTH TOTAL CAWD FLOW PBCSD FLOW PBCSD 
July - 23 38.634 26.289 12.345 31.954% 
Aug -23 37.315 25.785 11.530 30.899% 

Total 75.949 52.074 23.875 31.436% 
 
 
FUNDING  
 
Informational item only 
 
 

190



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  October 26, 2023 
 
Subject: Special Districts Association of Monterey County October 17, 2023 
 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The Special Districts Association of Monterey County met in person on October 17, 2023, with Director 
Siegfried and the General Manager attending. 
 
California Class 
The featured speaker was Robert Shull, a senior director from California Class – a joint powers 
authority investment pool.  California Class provides public agencies the opportunity to invest 
on a cooperative basis in rated pools that are managed in accordance with state law with the 
primary objective of offering participants safety, daily and next-day liquidity, and optimized 
returns. 
 
California Class is overseen and governed by a Board of Trustees comprised of public agency 
finance professions who participate in the fund and are members of the Joint Powers 
Authority.  The Board of Trustees has entered into an Investment Advisor and Administrator 
Agreement with Public Trust Advisors, LLC.  Public Trust is responsible for the Board for all 
program investment and administrative activities.  The maximum fee for California Class is 15 
basis points. 
 
Legislative Update 
Presented by Marcus Detwiler, a lobbyist with California Special District Association. 
 
Assembly Bill (AB) 1572:  Potable water:  nonfunctional turf.  The use of potable water for the 
irrigation of nonfunctional turf located on commercial, industrial, and institutional properties, 
other than a cemetery, and on properties of homeowner’s associations, common interest 
developments, and community service organizations is prohibited.  Approved by Governor in 
Oct 2023. 
 
 
 

  

191



Assembly Constitutional Amendment 1 (ACA1):  would propose to voters a question of 
whether to allow a city, county, or special district, with 55% voter approval, to incur bonded 
indebtedness or impose specified special taxes to fund projects for affordable housing, 
permanent supportive housing, or public infrastructure.  This passes to the November ballot. 
 
Senate Bill (SB) 747:  provides a limited and tightly constrained procedure for a local agency to 
administratively declare exempt surplus land, providing a streamlined but transparent 
procedure.  It provides a definition for “dispose” that includes entering into certain leases 
longer than 15 years.  Bill awaiting the governor’s signature. 
 
AB 557:  Approved by the Governor on October 2023,   allows local agency to hold 
teleconference procedures for state of emergency.  Also extends renewal from 30 days to 45 
days. 
 
AB 764.  Approved by the Governor October 2023, requires counties, general law and charter 
cities, and special districts that elect their governing boards to comply with requirements 
related to redistricting.  AB 764 strengthens the redistricting criteria, administrative 
requirements, public engagement requirements, and transparency measures based on lessons 
learned from 2020.  It would prohibit incumbency protection in the redistricting process and 
add clarity regarding proper prioritization of criteria to ensure jurisdictions do their due 
diligence. 
 
California Air Resources Board (CARB) – Advanced Clean Fleets regulation is part of CARBs 
overall approach to accelerate a large scale transition to zero emission medium and heavy duty 
vehicles.  State and local government fleets are required to ensure that 50% of vehicle 
purchases are zero-emission beginning in 2024 and 100% by 2027. 
 
Legislative Chair Report 
The Government Transparency Act is in the early stages of the state’s ballot measure process 
and must collect enough signatures to qualify for November ballot. The initiative would set 
stricter standards that mandated governments more quickly and comprehensively provide 
documents to the public.  Included is a requirement for agencies to retain records for at least 
five years in an attempt to prevent destruction of records.   
 
Assembly Constitutional Amendment 13:  provides that a proposed constitutional amendment 
and a statewide initiative measure each take effect only if approved by a majority of the votes 
cast on the amendment or measure.  This amendment is also known as the Protect and Retain 
the Majority Act as it aims to increase the threshold for passage. This will appear on the 
November 2024 ballot. 
 
Initiative 1935:  The purported “Taxpayer Protection and Government Accountability Act” is a 
proposal to limit the ability of the state and local governments to enact, modify, or expand 
taxes, assessments, fees, and property related charges.   

192



 
The proposal adopts new and stricter rules for raising taxes, fees, assessments, and property-
related fees.  It also creates new grounds to challenge these funding sources thereby disrupting 
fiscal certainty.  In addition,  it proposes to restrict the ability of local governments to issues 
fines and penalties to corporations and property owners that violate local environmental, 
water quality, public health, public safety, fair housing, nuisance and other laws and 
ordinances.  It also includes a provision to retroactively void all state and local taxes or fees 
adopted after January 1, 2022, if they did not align with the provisions of this initiative. 
Effectively it would allow voters throughout California to invalidate the prior actions of local 
voters, undermining local control and voter-approved decisions about investments needed in 
their communities. 
 
FUNDING  
 
Informational item only 
 
 

193



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:   Board of Directors  
 
From:   Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer 
 
Date:  October 26, 2023 
 
Subject:  Project #18-01 - WWTP Elec/Mech Rehab and Sludge Holding Tank 

Replacement Project – Progress Report 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 

 

Project #18-01 is near completion as of this month. A list of final items is being worked 
on, however the major components of the project are in place and operational. Photos of 
the construction work over the past month are attached.  
 
As this project winds down, this is a good opportunity to recap. The following is a 
synopsis of project highlights: 
 

1. Time: This project took about 2-years and 2-months of construction to complete. 
Prior to that planning, design, and permitting it took about 3-years (half of that 
time was waiting for the Coastal Development Permit). 
 

2. Cost: The total project cost will total about $9.6M. $2M (21%) was for soft costs 
such as design engineering and construction management. $7.6M (79%) went to 
construction. 
 

3. Non Value Add Change Orders: Non Value Added Change Orders totaled 
about 1% of the total construction cost. A large portion of this amount went 
towards changing the Sludge Holding Tank construction from Steel to Concrete 
due to new structural code requirements for steel tanks in floodplains. 
 

 

 

194



4. Value Add Change Orders: Value Added Change Orders amounted to about 4% 
of the total construction cost. Most of this went toward the additional paving 
work throughout the facility. 

 
5. Improvements to Operations: This project helped to improve the conditions for 

CAWD staff at the WWTP: 
• No more bi-weekly de-ragging of the Influent Pumps. 
• Better conditions at the Headworks tank including: elimination of a 

constant raw sewage spray, and addition of functional rag screening. 
• Actual paving throughout the facility. 
• Enhanced automation capabilities.  
• Four New Motor Control Centers. 
• New Valving on Effluent Pumps to allow regular maintenance. 
• A structurally sound Sludge Holding Tank. 

 
6. Improvements to Energy Use: This project helped to reduce power consumption 

at the CAWD WWTP. Actual results are pending operation over the next 6 
months, but it is estimated that the improvements implemented during this 
project will have provided an over 10% reduction in operational energy usage. 
 

7. Capital Improvement Program: This project caps over a decade of planning, 
design and construction that started with a new Capital Improvement Program 
that was completed in 2013. The 2013 Capital Improvement Plan anticipated 
$30M of improvements over 15-years. Since 2013 CAWD has completed about 
$27M in Capital Project upgrades at the CAWD treatment facility. The outlay for 
work at the CAWD facility over the next 5 years (not including the CRFREE 
Mitigation Project) is about $6M.  
 

8. Reclamation Treatment Facilities Future Capital: CAWD is currently 
conducting Master Planning for the Reclamation Project treatment facilities. The 
project outlay for Reclamation Treatment Capital Improvements could be 
upwards of $25M over the next 15-years. So, while the CAWD financed facilities 
will see less Capital Improvements a substantial amount of work is still needed 
within the Reclamation facilities. This future work would not be financed by 
CAWD, but it would be implemented by CAWD staff. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

• Construction Photos from September 2023 

195



Photos:
Influent Pump Station Rehab

196



197



198



Photos:
Headworks Rehab

199



200



Photos:
Effluent Pump Station Rehab

201



202



203



204



Photos:
Chlorination Building Rehab

205



206



207



208



Photos:
Site Paving Work

209



210



211



212



213



214



215



Special Districts Association of Monterey County – The next SDA meeting 
is scheduled for: 

     Tuesday, January TBD , 2024, at 6:00 p.m. –Director Urquhart are scheduled to attend.    

Tuesday, April TBD , 2024, at 6:00 p.m. –Director D'Ambrosio scheduled to attend. 

Reclamation Management Committee (RMC) Meeting – The next RMC meeting 
scheduled for: 

Tuesday, November 7, 2023, at 9:30 a.m. President White and Director Rachel     
are scheduled to attend 

Announcements On Subjects of Interest To The 
Board: 

PBCSD Board Public Meeting Notice & Agenda – The next PBCSD meeting 
is scheduled for: 

Friday, October 27, 2023, at 9:30 am. – Director Urquhart is scheduled to attend. Pebble Beach 

Community Service District (PBCSD) –No PBCSD meeting in November 

216



Adjournment

217


	01.A  Board Packet Cover
	3945 Rio Road, Carmel, CA 93923

	03.A 09-28-23 Mtng Minutes
	CONSENT CALENDAR: APPROVAL OF MINUTES, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MONTHLY REPORTS-ALL REPORTS RELATE
	TO CURRENT YEAR
	RESOLUTIONS

	03.B 9-29-23 Bridge To Everwhere Minutes
	Via teleconference and in-person

	04. CLA Sept 2023 Independent Accountant Letter
	05. Sept Stmt of Cash Receipts & Disbr
	0923
	graph 1
	graph 2

	06. Sept 2023 CAWD Disbursements
	07. Sept 2023 Reclamation Disbursements
	09. Sept 2023 Financial Stmt
	09.A September 2023 Board-Staff Report
	STAFF REPORT
	FROM: Daryl Lauer, Collection Superintendent
	RECOMMENDATION

	Permits Issued
	Maintenance
	Line Cleaning Table
	CCTV Progress Graph (River Watch Settlement Agreement Target)
	Manhole Inspection Table
	Riverwatch Update
	 Staff has completed the manhole inspection part of the settlement. The Principal Engineer will use this data to schedule rehabilitation or replacement of damaged or deteriorated manholes.
	 Staff has completed the CCTV inspections and the pumps station evaluations are being reviewed by the Principal Engineer.   A review of this information will be included in the final Collection System Asset Management Plan.
	General comments

	09.B Cleaning Map September 23
	09.C September 2023 Call Out Map
	09.D September 2023 Spill Map.0
	10. Safety Staff Report 10-Oct'23.v1
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	11. Consolidated Treatement Ops Rpt
	Brpt0923
	Brpt0923 Graph
	Brpt0823
	Brpt0823 Graph
	Brpt0723
	Brpt0723 Graph

	12. 2023 September Laboratory Report Ver 2
	FUNDING
	N/A-Informational item only

	13. Implementation Plan Schedule 10-16-23
	14. Project Summaries 10-26-23
	            ADP Workforce Now

	15.A Plant Ops Staff September 2023 
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION
	Training:
	 Staff participated in scheduled tailgate safety meetings in the Digester building conference room.
	 The Operations and Laboratory staff participated in the annual two-week safety training from September 11 through the 22 at the treatment facility.
	 The Operations Superintendent participated in the Monterey Bay Water Works Association annual training and vendor show at Castroville Community Center on the afternoon of September 14.
	• Staff continues working with Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor, on Project #18-01, the Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project for the following areas: Influent Pump Station, Headworks, Blower Building, Chlorin...
	Meetings Attended
	Discharge Permit Violations
	• There were no violations of Reclamation Permit 93-72 for the month of August 2023.
	  There was 1 violation of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Number CA0047996, Order No. R3-2014-0012 within the month of August 2023. These violations occur in Section III, A.1.a of Effluent Limitations and Discharge Specif...
	FUNDING
	N/A-Informational item only

	15.B Effluent EFF-001 Monthly Violations for August  2023 
	16. Maintenance Staff Report 10- October 2023 V2
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	17. Divider Page Resolutions Section Break
	17.A Pescadero Contract AMENDMENT 2 MNS staff report
	17.B Pescadero Sewer Amendment Request 2 (002)
	17.C RES 23-58 MNS Pescadero Contract Amendment rll review 1
	18.A Retired annuitant Staff Report
	18.B RES 2023-59 Retired Annuitant
	19.A Outsourcing HR To Beth Ingram 10-27-23
	19.B RES 2023-60 HR Services-Beth Ingram $71K
	20.A Final Corona Road-Staff report
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	20.B Engineers Report 231019
	MBE Proposal_20231019_143411.pdf
	MBE Proposal_20231019_143806

	20.C Final Resolution  2023-37 of Intention revised Oct 12
	21. Final Resolution 2023-61 Preliminarily Approving ER revised Oct 12
	22.A Staff Report Collections Truck October 2023 V4
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	22.B Resolution 2023-62  Unit 29 truck replacement
	RESOLUTION NO. 2023-62

	23.A Staff Report CMMS October 2023 V5
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	23.B Mobile MMS Quote
	23.C Resolution 2023-63- CMMS Software
	RESOLUTION NO. 2023-63

	24. Divider Page Oral Report General Manager
	24.A CCLEAN MOA staff report
	24.B CCLEAN 2023 Final MOA Steering Committee Approved101923
	Carmel Area Wastewater District

	24.C RES 2023-64 CCLEAN MOA
	25. Divider Page Other Items Before The Board - Copy
	25.A Nov-Dec Suggested  Board Mtg date - staff report
	25.B Divider Page Information & Discussion Items
	26. PBCSD Sept 23 Regular Board Mtg Staff Report
	DISCUSSION

	27. Special District Assoc Oct 17
	DISCUSSION

	28.A WWTP Rehab Project Progress Report
	28.B WWTP Rehab Project Progress Report - Photos
	29. CWEA Article September 2023-Featuring Rachel Lather
	30. Divider Page Announcements on Subject of Interest to the Board
	31. Divider Page Adjournment



Accessibility Report


		Filename: 

		172998021.pdf




		Report created by: 

		check

		Organization: 

		




 [Personal and organization information from the Preferences > Identity dialog.]


Summary


The checker found no problems in this document.


		Needs manual check: 2

		Passed manually: 0

		Failed manually: 0

		Skipped: 1

		Passed: 29

		Failed: 0




Detailed Report


		Document



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set

		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF

		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF

		Logical Reading Order		Needs manual check		Document structure provides a logical reading order

		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified

		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar

		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents

		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast

		Page Content



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged

		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged

		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order

		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided

		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged

		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker

		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts

		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses

		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive

		Forms



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged

		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description

		Alternate Text



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text

		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read

		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content

		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation

		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text

		Tables



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot

		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR

		Headers		Passed		Tables should have headers

		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column

		Summary		Skipped		Tables must have a summary

		Lists



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L

		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI

		Headings



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting






Back to Top


